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Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 
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1/7/2019 

Job # 30491 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Rose Laning  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the office of 

the tax commissioner and for payment of state reimbursement under the homestead tax 
credit and disabled veterans' credit; and to provide for a transfer. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Testimony Attached # 1 - 2 

 
Legislative Council: Adam Mathiak  
OMB: Stephanie Gullickson  
 
Chairman Holmberg called to order the hearing on SB 2006.  All committee members are 
present.  He announced the subcommittee for the Office of State Tax Commissioner.  They 
will be Senators Wanzek, Bekkedahl, and Mathern. 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger, Commissioner, Office of State Tax Commissioner 
Handed out Attachment # 1. 
 
(9:22) Senator Robinson: I have a question on the retirements. Were they retirements 
based on years of service and they reached that age where the early retirements and 
combination thereof.  Would you speak a bit on that? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger: They were retirements based on years of service. I mentioned that 
35 year number - last year I gave out five 40 year awards. I think at any given time, about 
25% of our agency could retire with the Rule of 85.  We did not participate in the voluntary 
buy-out program because we knew that earlier this year, we had a dozen plus retirements 
that were announced within the agency that even to get down to that 110 number, we knew 
that with just the announced retirements, we were going to be there.   
 
Senator Robinson: You’re looking at 10% turnover which can be high. Speak to us of the 
history of the department.  Is that a challenge for the department?  I’ve read where a lot of 
corporate entities have encouraged early retirement only to find themselves in the position 
where they lost that historical perspective, continuity and seasoned employees.  
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  Absolutely. Some of those who have retired were experts in their 
tax type. It depends on who retires, and knowledge transfer is a very serious issue that we 
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deal with.  We try to plan ahead when we know some retirements will have some knowledge 
transfer.  I mentioned that a lot of folks could retire – roughly 25% could walk out the door 
with the full benefits of the Rule of 85. We try to do our best over the years to work on job 
shadowing, knowledge transfer and it gets difficult when we aren’t seeing it in the range when 
we had 137 or 133 when right now our filled positions are much closer to the 110.  It gets 
difficult to take a lot of people off the job they are doing to do the knowledge transfer because 
we just don’t have as many people to transfer that knowledge to.  It’s a consideration that we 
deal with all the time.   
 
Senator Robinson: Have you been in a position where you have had to call someone back 
to resolve some issues and questions? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  Absolutely.  There are instances where we’ve had to call on some 
folks when they’ve been in retirement to help us out in some issues and pay them as full time 
temps for a month or two or longer so they could come back and help with those critical 
issues.   
 
Continuing on page 5 –  
 
Speaking of Priority 3 – Litigation Contingency Funds 
(22:53) Chairman Holmberg:  The PSC has also had money that they’ve received for 
litigation - and also the Industrial Commission.  This is different though because we haven’t 
had a litigation pool in OMBs budget. 
 
Stephanie Gullickson:   No, this is a new one.  We’ve taken all the requests and put them 
into a pool.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl:  Would there be a $1.2M expenditure in your budget and then a 
revenue into OMB for $1.2M for that pool or is the expenditure all in OMB for this pool?  In 
other words, is your budget going to take $1.2M and move it to the OMB pool? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger: It would be a transfer upon request.  I’m not sure how the 
mechanics would work – whether it would get transferred in and we’d expend the authority 
and then we’d get reimbursed when that money is spent.  I can’t necessarily speak to the 
order of operation.  We haven’t done this as an agency before.   
 
Chairman Holmberg: Essentially, Commissioner Rauschenberger is giving a shout out to 
an appropriation in another bill that impacts his budget.  It’s something that will be discussed 
at OMB level when that budget is here and then a decision will be made of whether we want 
to pool this or do we want to not do it at all.  Or do we want to say let’s put the money in the 
individual budgets.  OMB has a lot more flexibility so that will be part of the policy decision. 
For new committee members, the priorities that the commissioner is talking about are 
priorities that are already in the budget and they would like the to remain.  
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  That is correct.  So with Priorities 1& 2, these statements are simply 
to recognize that with the governor’s recommendation, at least in the FTE and GenTax case, 
we’re happy with the recommendation and would appreciate support for that 
recommendation.  And the same with Priority 3, we’re supportive of that too.  
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Continuing on page 8 – Homestead Tax Credit 
 
(28:57) Chairman Holmberg: These are statutory requirements.  You have to pay this, they 
can’t pro-rate this.  At times we end up with these deficiency appropriates because you have 
no recourse but to pay.  
 
Ryan Rauschenberger: That’s a good point, but on page 9, these are both general fund 
programs that are seen as sister programs. Again, same funding source. Something that we 
pay to the counties for them to benefit the tax payers.  Last time we had a line item transfer 
authority that if we’re short in one and we won’t know until the end of the biennium until we’re 
short in one or ahead in the other.  We had authority to transfer just between the two 
programs.  In Appendix E, we have that language that would need to be amended to continue 
that.  Again, I believe we would need that in whatever bill would eventually pass, so Appendix 
E would have some language that we can refer to that we would ask to be included in our bill 
so we can transfer between those two line items.   
 
(30:40) Chairman Holmberg: You are able to do that today – thru the emergency 
commission. 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  Right, but I don’t believe that is in code.  I think we need it in our 
appropriation language.  That was new last time, but today we can do it.  It probably won’t 
happen because they’re likely to be short.  We’ve had it in the past where the veteran’s might 
be $100,000 short.  There used to be a lot more cushion in the Homestead program.  We 
usually had a couple million.  Last time we weren’t looking for as much cushion and brought 
that down a lot closer to where the actual program expenditures are meant to be.  The line 
item transfers would help if we have just a little savings in one, it can help backfill any shortfall 
in the other.   
 
Senator Bekkedahl:   Do you think that’s the result of more applications or do you think it’s 
the result of the appreciated values of some of these properties out there? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  I would say for sure more application.  We do spend our own dollars 
$30,000-40,000 a biennium to promote these programs because they are application based.  
They don’t just automatically get that reduction in their property taxes.  You need a smaller 
public education to promote these.  Every year it does get a little larger.  There are more 
veterans and then more veterans that are eligible and applying for this with at least 50% 
disability.  The population is definitely growing.  I can’t speak to the valuation, but Linda 
Leadbetter is here.  Is most due to the applications or would it be getting closer to a higher 
valuation – because it is capped on the value side, but there aren’t a lot of programs that are 
below that cap anymore.  They’re getting closer and closer.   
 
Linda Leadbetter, Property Tax Division: It was primarily because the program was 
expanded and assets were changed and once they find they are eligible, they can go back 
apply for an abatement.   

 
Ryan Rauschenberger: The eligibility requirements were changed – fairly large changes in 
2013, and once they learn about it, tax payers can go back for abatements and then we have 
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to write out the checks for that too.  They have a couple years to go back if they found out 
they missed a year or two.   
 
Continuing on Page 9 – Requested to spend $40,000 per biennium from the Homestead Tax 
Credit line and up to $5000 from the Disabled Veteran’s Credit line item so they’d actually 
have the money come from the program and not necessarily from the general operating 
budget.  
  
(35:06) Chairman Holmberg: You might want to mention, since we have new committee 
people, that under the Homestead tax credit, there are actually two parts.  There’s the 
homeowners and then the renters. There’s an application process.  
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  Renters refund is something that we administer at the state level 
because it’s something that the renter applies for.  They are not the one filling out the property 
tax bill.  It’s similar to the Homestead Tax Credit program because as your income rises, your 
benefit goes down.  It’s a formula of rent and expenditures and what your income level is.  
The check goes right to the renter if eligible. There are fairly tight parameters of having a 
certain lower income level, and again on a sliding scale.   
 
(36:20) Senator G. Lee: In our bill, in section 2, it talks about a transfer from the motor vehicle 
fuel tax revenue to the general fund.  In the governor’s bill, it’s section three. Can you explain 
what that’s about? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger: That is a statutory requirement that we have to meet based on a 
calculation we do every biennium.  I could have our CFO, Glenda Anderson, probably explain 
it better than I can.   There is a calculation that we have to do every biennium and that 
becomes the number that is in that section of the bill which is to basically cover the general 
fund’s cost of administering the highway tax distribution fund, the fuel tax, etc.  In short, the 
fuel tax pays the general fund for the general fund administering fuel tax.   
 
Senator G. Lee: The fuel tax goes to the highway distribution and DOT manages that, don’t 
they? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  We do administer the fuel tax. The DOT administers or is our agent 
for the vehicle excise tax, the title transfer tax, the sales tax on vehicles generally. They are 
our agent. We back them up.  We administer the fuel tax because we have sales tax with 
retailers and wholesalers.  We actually administer that side of it. Because we’re a general 
fund agency, it basically requires that the fuel tax does kick back something to the general 
fund.  
 
(39:14) Senator Wanzek:  Do you believe it’s enough to cover the expenses of administering 
the motor vehicle fuels fund?  Is there a formula where they subtract it off the vehicle.    
 
Ryan Rauschenberger: I’ll let Glenda explain the calculation. 
 
(40:04) Glenda Anderson, Chief Fiscal Officer, State Tax Commissioner’s Office: What 
that transfer is – We go through and we analyze all of the expenditures that were related to 
operating the motor fuels section – every cost that they incurred, data processing, printing, 
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postage, anything that we can tie directly to them, the salaries that go along with it, and then 
we use that as a formula and determine how much we’re going to put into this section as a 
transfer request.   
 
(40:48) Senator Hogue: We’ve got a couple wide version estimates on upcoming corporate 
income taxes, and I’m wondering if you are aware of that and if you could tell us what your 
sense is to where we should be looking as the most reliable indication of what corporate 
income tax revenue will be for the upcoming biennium. 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger: Between the executive and the IHS numbers this morning, there is 
considerable variance between those two.  I’ve looked at the numbers correctly very quickly 
and I think corporate income tax is the biggest differences between the two. There are 
potentially some factors in the executive forecast that IHS maybe is in the weeds.  
 
If you look at corporate income tax historically, it’s as volatile a tax.  We talk about oil tax a 
lot, but when you’re making money as a corporation, you pay. When you lose money as a 
corporation, you get to carry that forward for a number of years, so when you’re not making 
money, you’re not paying for potentially a long time.  It can be very unlike oil tax where it’s 
pay as you go every month. There’s a price on the gross, kind of simple algebra.  Corporate 
income tax is the most difficult tax to forecast because, partly, we have the Tax Cuts Jobs 
Act that was changed.  There are more deductions allowable, different treatment on the 
federal level. Again, I can’t speak for what’s in IHS’s numbers.  I don’t know what was taken 
into account, but I know we made some reductions in changes for that with certain deductions 
expanded that corporations can take advantage of within the next couple years and wipe out 
some of the North Dakota taxable income.  Part of the reason it’s so difficult is because we’re 
basing it on federal taxable income to get North Dakota and that gets difficult to know exactly 
what that North Dakota portion will be of a multi-state company.  I have a lot more knowledge 
of what went into the state side as opposed to IHS, but I think we wrote down the corporate 
side as much percentage wise as anything after the downturn in revenues, like in 2016 & 
2017.  The corporate executive one is pretty conservative, but because it’s so volatile, I think 
that’s one of the reasons it was written down so much.   
 
Chairman Holmberg: You answered it.  You said you know as much about it as Moody’s 
and IHS.  It’s a tough one.  
 
Ryan Rauschenberger – concluded.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Do you have the internet sales?  When will you have a good idea? 
Will it be two years from now?  Where are we at? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  As of today, we’ve hit the 2000 mark of online companies that were 
not registered before the Supreme Court decision that have registered as a result of it.  We’re 
tracking that.  It’s a sought after line item.  It’s new to the budget and this process.  We just 
collected about $2M but because of the delay in filing, we want to be clear that we actually 
won’t have a good read on it.  Some of them are monthly filers, but we won’t have December 
monthly or fourth quarter 2018 until the end of this month.  So those two filers, which is a big 
group, we won’t have those numbers until early February.  That’s something I’ve put a hold 
on requests because then we’ll at least have a full quarter.  It’s a big shopping quarter so it 
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will be a high number.  Every day we have more and more companies registering.  The 
reason they aren’t all registered as we’d like them to be right now is because there is a 
national bottleneck with companies that specialize in this.  There are a few big companies 
that do this on behalf of online companies.  They’re getting such an influx of requests that 
they’re not getting in the door right away.  They weren’t all able to flip a switch and start 
collecting and mapping their inventory for all the different 45 states that have a sales tax.  
 
We collected about $2M, but that does not reflect the bulk of the busy shopping season that 
we just went through.  Black Friday & Cyber Monday were up 20% from the year before so 
online sales is definitely where the expenditures are shifting.  We’re focusing our efforts on 
the top 1000 online companies.  We have that list. We probably have 1/3 of them in at this 
point, but we’re focusing on the top 250-500 because they’re the ones paying Google to get 
up to the top of the search. We are focusing our compliance efforts on the top sellers.   
 
(49:04) Senator Robinson: On page 12, on the financial analysis – line item 14-15 – How 
many of our FTEs in the tax dept. are officed outside the tower?   
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  We’ve had fewer than we’ve had in the past, but we do have 
Dickinson, Williston, Minot, Grand Forks and Fargo.  I’m going to say 15, maybe a full 20 are 
in different cities, with the most being in Fargo. So our largest field office is in Fargo because 
20% of all retail sales in the state are in Fargo.  We do a lot out west, but we have cut back 
on the number of people in the field pretty significantly over the years.  
 
Senator Wanzek: In the last budget we had, it authorized 133 FTEs, but really only provided 
funding for 127.  Does this budget provide the full funding for the 123? 
 
Ryan  Rauschenberger:  This budget, as presented by the governor, would fully fund 123.  
Those unfunded FTEs are not asking to be funding specifically in this budget. We’re not 
asking for the funding for those six   
 
Senator Wanzek: I see in the green sheet, there’s a number of 772,000  “underfund salaries 
and wages”.  Can you explain? 
 
Chairman Holmberg: You’re one of the agencies that’s large enough so they underfunded 
you out of the shoot.  
 
Glenda Anderson:  My understanding is that we had put in our Optional Funding Request, 
an unfunding of 2.58M. That would’ve been for a full 17 FTEs, but the governor only restored 
1.8M of that.  This 772,000 is the difference, so that’s the equivalent of four FTEs – not 
specifically identified, just unfunded in total. 
 
Senator Mathern: Just a follow up - I still don’t understand how many positions are fully 
funded in this budget. 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger: The fully funded positions in this budget would be the 123.  My 
understanding is that the difference between the 123 and 127 makes up the 772,000.  We 
didn’t get the 127 that we had requested.  That was 17 FTEs up from 110 – so the 90% is 
the 110.  We asked for 17 more to go with the 127.  The governor recommended 123, so 123 



Senate Appropriations Committee  
SB 2006 – Office of the Tax Commissioner 
January 7, 2019 
Page 7  
   

would be the fully funded FTE count in this budget and I believe that’s the final number on 
the green sheet.  It gets a little difficult because it goes from 133 down to 123, but the budget 
number is from 127 to 123.   The budget dollar amounts don’t necessarily reconcile with the 
FTE count because of the six unfunded.  
 
(54:07) Senator Mathern:  The difference between 123 and 127 – would you fund those if 
you found $700,000 in your budget?   
 
Ryan Rauschenberger: To get to the 123, we absolutely would.  We would fund positions 
but likely reclassify and fill in the compliance and audit area to work on things like online 
sales tax.  They were more administratively focused before and not compliance and audit – 
revenue generating functions. We would absolutely fill them.   
 
Chairman Holmberg: If you found that money was in your budget, would you go to hire 
those folks or would you do the 2% the 2nd year of the biennium for the employees that are 
already there?  Or do you want to think about it?  (chuckle) Those are the kind of choices we 
have to make.  
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  I hadn’t necessarily thought about that, but that would be a tough 
choice.  In our recommendation, we’re supportive of the governor’s 123.  I may have to come 
back and refine this answer, but focus on salaries.  Employees going without salary increases 
for two years should have our focus.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: I want to give our tax commissioner a shout out for being honest and 
up front when pressed in Grand Forks as to why our sales tax revenue keeps dropping and 
the word Macys was finally announced.  You were up front on that.    
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  There have been a lot of questions from the Grand Forks area 
about the retail base.  In the last year, we’ve had a lot of big box stores go by the way.  It’s 
in all the big cities.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Are there any other questions or folks that will speak on this budget. 
The subcommittee will be Senators Wanzek, Bekkedahl and Mathern.   
 
Mike Chaussee, AARP ND – Testimony Attached # 2 
Wanted to show support for the Homestead Tax Credit.  It helps vulnerable North Dakotans 
stay in their homes and AARP is all for supporting that.   
 
Chairman Holmberg: Closed the hearing on SB 2006. 
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Job # 31193 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Rose Laning / Marne Johnson 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the office of the tax 
commissioner and for payment of state reimbursement under the homestead tax credit and 
disabled veterans' credit; to amend and reenact section 57-01-04 of the North Dakota 
Century Code, relating to the salary of the state tax commissioner; to provide for a transfer; 
and to declare an emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 No Attachments  

 
Legislative Council: Alex Cronquist  
OMB: Larry Martin  

The Senate Appropriations Committee met to discuss the agency bills and others that have 
been presented thus far and wanted to get input from the whole committee on what should 
be the focus of each sub-committee.  
 
Chairman Holmberg said that we’re not going thru salaries at this time.  
 
SB 2001 – Governor (sub-committee: Hogue, Lee, Mathern) 

 The 10% movement of moving money between line items.   Have a standard response 
for them. 

 Discuss the governor’s salary - this reduces salary just short of $200,000 & what 
happens to the rest of it. They took their 5% cut.  (Language needs to be revisited) 

 Council said by putting it in a line item, then it couldn’t get spent in other areas. 

 Transfer language - limited it to 10% before going to emergency commission 
 
 
SB 2002 – Secretary of State (sub-committee: Hogue, Oehlke, Grabinger) 

 Voting equipment – replacing voting machines (matching requirement by state) 

 Emergency clause should be there.  

 10% line item transfers 
 
 
SB 2003 – Attorney General (sub-committee: Sorvaag, Bekkedahl, Mathern) 
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 Litigation authority 

 Amount of money for Litigation 

 Joining in with other states suing the federal government 

 New line in OMB to tap into litigation pool 

 Human trafficking grants added to AG bill 
 
 
SB 2004 – State Auditor (sub-committee:  Oehlke, Dever, Mathern) 

 Looking at number of FTE requests 

 FTEs between University system and Auditor’s office 

 ITD FTEs. 
 
 
SB 2005 – State Treasurer (sub-committee: Bekkedahl, Dever, Robinson) 

 Investments of the Veterans Post War Trust Fund (low interest) 

 Treasurer’s salary 
 
   
SB 2006 – Tax Commissioner (sub-committee: Wanzek, Bekkedahl, Mathern) 

 Discovery of compliance of businesses with no physical sales tax.   

 Concern about staffing – many retirees and loss of senior staff.   

 Authority for line item transfers between the Homestead Tax Credit and Disabled 
Veteran’s Credit programs. 

 Litigation funds – or funds in litigation pool.  
 
 
SB 2007 – Labor & Human Rights (sub-committee: Poolman, Sorvaag, Robinson) 

 Salary of Commissioner as she will be in charge of Dept of Labor and Human Rights as 
well as the Dept. of Commerce.  

 
 
SB 2008 – Public Service Commissioner (sub-committee: Lee, Wanzek, Grabinger) 

 Wanting additional staff for indemnity issues 

 Additional staff 

 $100,000 increase in budget 
 

JOB # 31232 - 
 
SB 2009 – Agriculture Commissioner (sub-committee: Wanzek, Erbele, Grabinger) 

 Want to move APUC and Trade Office to his office. 

 2 less FTEs 

 Ag bio-science program – an appropriation bill.  Should it be added to the budget or let 
it a stand-alone bill.   

 
SB 2010 – Insurance Commissioner (sub-committee: Oehlke, Erbele, Grabinger) 

 Moving the Fire & Tornado fund over to the ND Insurance Reserve Fund 

 Boiler inspection program 
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 Fire Departments & Sheriff’s tax on insurance   
 

 
SB 2011 – Securities Commission (sub-committee: Krebsbach) 

 Money for a FINTECH position 

 Section 3 appropriation of any income from federal funds (14:17) 
 
Larry Martin: Like the transfer language, we added a lot of the language to spend 
additional federal or other funds to the cabinet agencies.  Again, some of them receive 
money from outside sources, so we wanted them to have the ability to pay out.  Job 
Service has similar language currently because they do get additional federal money so 
they have to be able to spend it out.  We added that language to all the cabinet bills.   
   
 
SB 2012 – Human Services (sub-committee: Dever, Erbele, Mathern) 

 Provider rates.  Governor 1-1.  They want 3-3-3. 

 Medicaid – reauthorization of the expansion.  Do we reimburse? 

 Behavioral Health 

 State Hospital – support the move from New England for the women?  Justification for 
the state hospital – a study? 

 Policy and how its structured – for whole department.  $182M 

 Nursing Homes  

 Study the 36 Critical Access Hospitals - Commercial rates vs. traditional rates 

 Study resolution of medical care in the future for the state 

 1915(i) needs support.  

 Commercial vs. traditional rates 
 

 
 
 
SB 2013 – Public Instruction; Library, Blind & Deaf (sub-committee: Holmberg, Poolman, 
Robinson) 

 Will have some meetings but need to wait for Education Committee to complete policy.  
Governor’s school information is confusing.    

 1 FTE reinstated.  

 Adult education.  

 FTEs at school at Devils’ Lake 

 Governor moved pre-school money from Commerce to DPI (where is the money?)  

 Transportation grants  
 
 
 
SB 2014 – Protection & Advocacy (sub-committee: Sorvaag, Krebsbach, Grabinger) 

 Adding of one employee  

 Additional operating expenses 

 Transferring guardianship programs to P & A.     
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SB 2015 – Office of Management & Budget (sub-committee: Holmberg, Bekkedahl, 
Robinson) 

 Transferring money –  $1B of oil revenue to general funds.  
If we put $1B in and oil prices go down and we have less money in the general fund, 
we might have a risk with allotments. 
Do we want to expose ourselves more in the general fund by putting $1B in the general 
fund from direct oil revenue?   

 Fees or dues for several organizations. Last session we reduced dues by 10%.  

 WICHE (Western Interstate Commission for Higher Ed) dues were in OMB and 
Commission was placed under Higher Ed.  Did the $15,000 get transferred?  

 
 
 
 
SB 2016 – Office of Adjutant General (sub-committee: Hogue, Holmberg, Grabinger) 

 Land Acquisition - Proposed 6,000 acres of land in south Camp Grafton.  Want to ask 
the adjutant, you have $15M set aside to acquire 6000 continuous acres and will not 
exercise the power of eminent domain.  How much will they pay an acre?  
How did they come up with $15M? 

 $15M set aside to gain land - long term leases.  Be wary of setting precedent for 
cost/acre. 

 Locals are not on board?  
 
 

 
 
SB 2017 – Game & Fish (sub-committee: Oehlke, Wanzek, Grabinger) 

 Section 5 on green sheet – additional amounts appropriated to Game & Fish Dept. 
There is appropriated additional income from the feds from other funds to that agency.  
Would the federal funds go to their agency first?   

 If they’re receiving monies from federal, they can spend them out.  

 Section 6 - Require them to hang onto $15M unless we have a budget section meeting 
and have an exception for some emergency.  They have to invest it and its not making 
money where its being invested.  They’d like it to be invested by the state investment 
board.  

 Sportsman’s clubs – raise the fishing licenses; boat tax/gas tax. 
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☒ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk Signature    Alice Delzer / Florence Mayer 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the 
office of the tax commissioner and for payment of state reimbursement under 

the homestead tax credit and disabled veterans' credit; and to provide for a 
transfer. 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment #1 - 2 

 
 
Senator Wanzek: Called the sub-committee to order on SB 2006 at 4:00 pm in the Harvest 
Room.  Senators Bekkedahl and Robinson were also present. Chris Kadrmas, Legislative 
Council and Becky J. Keller, OMB were also present. Asked for a quick summary to refresh 
their memory of what was needed.     
 
Ryan Rauschenberger, State Tax Commissioner: Provided Attachment #1, budget 
overview. Speaking off of original testimony pages 5-7 & 11. (Attachment #2 pages 1-3 for 
this subcommittee.)  
 
(7:02) Senator Bekkedahl: You basically spent $16M this biennium. Staying at $16M for a 
program that is increasing, you are only adding $200,000. You are being judicious in my 
mind.  
 
Ryan Rauschenberger: The $16m was a holdover. We cut that number back to save money 
in this biennium. The current practice of always planning for a potential deficiency is the 
possible way to go forward.    
 
Senator Bekkedahl: I don’t understand the deficiency. If it occurs, you have to make those 
payments to the counties. How are you making them now? Are you making then with other 
funds internally? Or are we giving the money in time to make the payments?  
 
Ryan Rauschenberger: We barely have the data right now; to know what the deficiency is. 
It is forecasted for the May/June timeframe.     
 
Senator Bekkedahl: You are meeting the window for the counties to get their money? 
(Correct.) How are bills currently going through session going to impact the homestead tax 
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credit or the disabled veterans tax credit? One from the tax dealt with special assessments 
being covered by the homestead tax credit as well. Can you speak to the numbers that might 
generate?   
 
Ryan Rauschenberger: That was pretty minor, the numbers we were looking at are pretty 
small. I can have Linda get that to you. She can clarify the number if she feels the number 
we submitted might be a little too low. We are basically at that number, if it continues to grow, 
what the expected deficiency might be.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl: I am comfortable with the number they provided. Even though the 
special assessment number might be low this session, a lot of recipients of that live in old 
neighborhoods that are going through some rehabilitations now.  
 
Senator Robinson: Was the thought just to go with this figure and plan on having another 
deficiency in 2 years? 
 
Becky J. Keller, OMB: The thought was when we asked how they based that number, they 
said history. We wanted to put a number in, but we thought we would have more information 
by the time of session. 
 
Senator Robinson: Is it preferential that we bump this up and fund it at a better number? Or 
plan on another deficiency?  
 
Becky J. Keller, OMB: I would have preferred to bump it up. I don’t think the Governor’s 
office would have a problem with that. We just didn’t know where we thought it would be.   
 
V. Chairman Wanzek: Why would you not do it, if we’re anticipating it. You talked about 
promotion. You’ve been spending $30,000-40,000 in promotion, but it mostly came out of 
operating funds? Now you’re requesting the $45,000 come out of the homestead and 
disabled veterans credit line item? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger: I believe we know more after crossover. During conference 
committee we might have a better opportunity to adjust the homestead and veterans tax 
numbers. To the point concerning expenditures, we are requesting $40,000 from homestead 
tax credit line item and $5,000 be dedicated to promotion. We do use our own operating 
budget. We back off on postage, travel, printing, all of those types of items, to create our 
savings. But we continue to hold steady and spend significant dollars on promoting these 
programs. This is application based, and we believe it is important. It does come directly out 
of our general fund operating line.  
 
V. Chairman Wanzek: You would rather see it come out of these lines rather than your 
operating? If we feel it’s necessary, what if we increased the operating? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger: Either would be agreeable. We have to shave down printing, and 
make efficiencies in other areas. We have always spent advertising dollars out our general 
operating. I think we’d be fine with having that in operating. We thought it might be cleaning 
in the future, if those dollars came directly out of those funding line items, limited to those 
specific amounts.  
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V. Chairman Wanzek: I am concerned it is designated to be used for that purpose. I haven’t 
made my mind up on that yet. This budget, with the executive recommendations, is fully 
funding 123 FTEs now? (That was confirmed.)  And the executive budget restored the 
$1.13M to bring the gen tax up to level 3. What you are saying is you are in agreement with 
what the recommendations are, except taking the taking the promotional money out of the 
Homestead credit? (That was confirmed.)  
 
(17:16) Senator Bekkedahl: From what I see here, the total base level funding changes are 
a little over $3M. The vast majority of that is all in base payroll changes, salary increases, 
health increases, retirement contribution increases, and funding homestead and disabled 
veterans tax credits with the gen tax. You are fine with all of those, I think you have done a 
nice job. The bulk of his expenditure above the base level funding are related to employee 
costs and health insurance.   
 
Ryan Rauschenberger: The increased cost you see are because costs of increase, costs 
to continue for the 123 employees.  
 
V. Chairman Wanzek: We’re are the point where we could rubber stamp the executive 
budget is what you’re saying? It was $200,000 more for homestead tax credit? How much 
for the disabled veterans? 
 
Senator Bekkedahl: I’ve done the math of the disabled veterans and we’d have to add 
$589,800 above and beyond what the Governor recommended. 
 
(19:31) Senator Bekkedahl: Explain the section 3 motor vehicle fuel tax revenue transfer. 
Does that normally happen now or is it a new request?  
 
Ryan Rauschenberger: That is something we calculate every biennium, it’s basically in 
statute. It’s basically a compensation to the general fund. We don’t get it, just goes straight 
from the collections to the general fund.   
 
V. Chairman Wanzek: It goes to the general fund, and it is offsetting the general fund 
expenditures in your office. Is it determined by a formula or percentage?   
 
Ryan Rauschenberger: It is. We have to go through all the expenses per line item, and 
break it down into line item expenses. Basically it’s our estimate of the costs.    
 
V. Chairman Wanzek: That’s been law for a long time. We aren’t recreating the wheel here.    
 
Ryan Rauschenberger: It’s been around for 40 years. We don’t keep any of that amount.  It 
goes into general fund, there’s no special authority for us to retain that for any purpose.  
 
V. Chairman Wanzek: The authorization to transfer funds between the homestead and the 
disabled veterans credit, has that always been done before? I feel like we’ve done that in the 
past. 
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Ryan Rauschenberger: We had it in 2013 for two sessions. We starting requesting that 
when we had a surplus in one and a deficiency in the other. Lately that hasn’t been the case, 
both have been slightly under funded. They are both general fund, sort of sister programs. If 
one is short, the other has the surplus, we don’t have to go to the emergency commission, 
we can transfer between the two. We would request the amended language in our bill.   
 
V. Chairman Wanzek: The commissioner’s salary, the same 2 and 3 as well? (That was 
confirmed.)   
 
Senator Robinson: If we have consensus on those issues, I think we are ready to roll here.  
Depending on what we want to do with the $200,000 and if we fund it.   
 
Senator Bekkedahl: I would agree that we take the veterans and homestead tax credits up 
to the amounts recommended by the commissioner. Which were $16M and $9M. 
 
Senator Robinson: Moved To Adopt Amendment.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl: Seconded.  
 
All Were in Favor.   
 
V. Chairman Wanzek: We are basically rubber stamping the budget, and then the 2 and 3 
language. 
 
Senator Bekkedahl: We assumed we are going to do the 1% and 1%. I don’t know if 
Chairman Holmberg has made that a policy for you guys to follow yet. 
It may be impacted by Senator Dever’s subcommittee as well.    
 
V. Chairman Wanzek: I am not sure I am comfortable with understanding that. We should 
visit with the leader of the committee and bring me up to speed. The next time we meet, it 
would just be a matter of passing the amendment. We will adjourn the subcommittee on SB 
2006 for now.  
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      Committee Clerk:  Alice Delzer  

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 A Subcommittee hearing for the Department of the Tax Commissioner.  
 

Minutes:                                                 1.Proposed Amendment # 19.0219.01001 

 
Chairman Wanzek called the Subcommittee to order on SB 2006. Let the record show that 
all members were present; Chairman Wanzek, Senator Robinson and Senator Bekkedahl.  
Larry Martin, OMB and Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council  were also present.  
 
Chairman Wanzek submitted Attachment # 1, Amendment # 19.0219.01001 and explained 
the amendment.  
 
Senator Robinson: moved the amendment.   2nd by Senator Bekkedahl.   
 
A voice vote was called.  Yea: 3; Nay: 0; Absent: 0.  It carried.   
 
the subcommittee hearing on SB 2006 was closed.   
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 A BILL for an Act to defray the expenses of the tax commissioner  
 

Minutes:                                                 1.Proposed Amendment # 19. 0219.01001 

 
Chairman Holmberg: opened the hearing on SB 2006.  All committee members were present 
except Senator Gary Lee.  Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council and Larry Martin, OMB were 
also present.  
 
V. Chairman Wanzek: submitted Attachment # 1. Amendment 19.0219.01001 and  
explained the Amendment.   
 
V. Chairman Wanzek: Moved the Amendment.  2nd Senator Robinson.   
 
 A voice vote was called for.  It carried.  
 
Senator Robinson: Moved a Do Pass as Amended.  2nd by V. Chairman Wanzek.  
 
Chairman Holmberg:  Call the roll on a Do Pass as Amended on SB 2006. 
 
A Roll Call vote was taken.  Yea: 13; Nay: 0; Absent: 1.  V. Chairman Wanzek will carry 
the bill.  
 
The hearing was closed on SB 2006.  
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☐ Subcommittee 
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      Committee Clerk: Sheri Lewis 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the office of the 
tax commissioner and for payment of state reimbursement under the homestead tax credit 
and disabled veterans’ credit; and to provide for a transfer. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment A 

 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Opened the hearing on SB2006. 
 
Roll Call taken. 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger, Commissioner, ND Office of State Tax Commissioner:  See 
testimony attachment A. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  The 127 FTE’s are funded and you have 6 FTE’s that are 
not funded.  Are there targets or projections where you need these other FTE’s? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  When we left last session, those positions had been open for quite 
some time.  They were not removed; but, we did not plan on filling them this biennium.  We 
don’t plan on filling them and are not asking for them back. 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger continued with his testimony. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  How do you handle it when GenTax is upgraded?  Some tax 
payers have run into a “404” error.  Is there an automatic switch on it? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  That’s likely a web browser or link error; not necessarily the system 
itself.  The system acts very well. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  When you do change it, how do you notify people? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  The easiest solution is that we get calls.   
 
Ryan Rauschenberger continued with his testimony. 
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Representative Kempenich:  You have 24 FTE’s open, most of them are auditor positions.  
Do you have a priority list of how you’d like to see those filled? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  We can get that to you. 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger continued with his testimony. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  How many people from Fast work here? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  We have eleven people. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  That’s what these service contracts do? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  Part of it is onsite support; and part of it is what we call service 
packs.  Upgrades are done every other year.    
 
Representative Kempenich:  Do you keep a cost benefit analysis? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  Every year we have meetings and discussions with the heads of 
Fast Enterprises to talk about a cost structure; and looking at the benefits.   
 
Representative Kempenich:  The 20 states that don’t, do they put their own system 
together?  How do they go about operating? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  There are many other systems that states have a choice to choose 
from.   
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  Where do you identify that bucket for wind tax revenue? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  That’s a good point.  When you have one that’s much larger than 
the others it might be best to start breaking that out. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  I’m saying that it’s something you can do internally, not 
legislatively. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  If someone asks today how much revenue is generated by wind, can 
you identify it? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  We can.  There are different methodologies for wind; it isn’t taxed 
just one way.  
 
Ryan Rauschenberger continued with his testimony. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  Coal and wind are very close and not that far apart.   
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  We’ll do our best for coming up with those answers for the interim 
committees. 
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Representative Kempenich:  Even for the companies, the way it’s set up is a local tax. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  One-third will roll into the state coffers. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  I think what you need to have is a central area you can go to 
for this information. 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  The mills vary school district to school district. 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger continued with his testimony. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  That 1.2 million is in the OMB bill at this point for your department? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  Yes. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  That isn’t segregated by departments. 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  No. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  There was $4 million in that OMB budget for litigation money.  
Lynn’s asked for $1.5 million, you’ve asked for $1.2 million and the ag commissioner is 
looking for $1 million.  How much is left?   
 
Becky Keller, Budget Analyst, ND Office of Management and Budget:  We had initially 
put $4 million in the bill.  We had $2.8 million spoken for; and then the Senate reduced it to 
$2.5 million. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  There’s $1.5 million left? 
 
Becky Keller:  That they didn’t give.  We had $2.8 million in budgets that we pulled out and 
put into the pool; then we added extra in case there were additional agencies that wanted in 
on it.  The Senate reduced it from the $4 million to the $2.5 million. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  There’s only $2.5 million in there? 
 
Becky Keller:  Correct. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  $1.5 million and $1.2 million equals $2.7 million. 
 
Becky Keller:  We had the industrial commission in at $1.5 million, tax at $1.2 million and 
PSC at $100,000.00; we didn’t have ag in there at all. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  They pulled $1 million out of the agriculture budget and they 
get nothing back. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  This potential litigation, is that just against one or two companies or 
individuals? 
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Ryan Rauschenberger:  In total between corporate income tax and sales it would potentially 
be a number of companies. 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger continued with his testimony. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  There’s a bill that passed the House for retired veterans and 
I think it has a $3 million fiscal note in it.  They’re saying we’re going to lose our air bases if 
we don’t give them this tax credit.   
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  We haven’t made any adjustments for any other bill’s impact.  
There are a lot of unknowns; but, we haven’t built in any growth in this line item. 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger continued with his testimony. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  What are you basing your numbers on for the homestead tax 
credit? 
 
Linda Ledbetter, Supervisor of Assessments, ND Office of State Tax Commissioner:  
The 2018 payments were based off of 8,373 homestead credit applicants; for the disabled 
veterans credit we had 3,434 applicants.  The dollar amount for the homestead tax credit 
was just over $7 million and just over $4 million for the disabled veterans credit. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Did we reduce those funding levels because of the budget situation? 
 
Linda Ledbetter:  I think it was both.   
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Did the usage increase over what we estimated or did we go in knowing 
we’d probably have to ask for a deficiency payment? 
 
Linda Ledbetter:  We went as low as we felt we possibly could.  The applications are filed 
at the local level; and there may be someone that identifies that they’re eligible.  It’s a moving 
target. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  The department does education on both of those programs? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  Correct. 
 
Representative Beadle:  In your testimony you stated that you’re not doing as much 
advertising.  When you scaled back some of that, did you see either the counties do an uptick 
in making sure that their people knew that this eligible for people that were complaining about 
property tax issues within those counties or did you see a corresponding drop in new 
applicants? 
 
Linda Ledbetter:  We did not see a reduction in the applicants.  I do believe that the counties 
did pick up a lot of the changes. 
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Representative Beadle:  During the interim we looked through a lot of the tax credits that 
are out there.  One of the things we learned is that if it’s not being marketed, it’s not being 
utilized. 
 
Linda Ledbetter:  I do think that this is such a large program that there are so many people 
that are aware of it; that when property tax is discussed, I think it did. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  I think the younger veterans are somewhat hesitant to join service 
organizations and seek out their county veteran’s service officers to find out what benefits 
are available to them.  Is there any special program targeted at our younger veteran’s? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  To my knowledge, unless the local veteran’s services offices are 
promoting from their angle, I’m not aware of any specific program. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  Didn’t we increase this program? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  The last time major change was made to this program was in 2013; 
the homestead tax program was expanded. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  Where are the top 10 counties? 
 
Linda Ledbetter:  We look at population and the numbers; Burleigh county had 923 
applicants, Cass county had 931, Grand Forks had 675, Morton county had 502 applicants 
for the homestead tax credit.  For the disabled veterans credit, Burleigh had 455, Cass had 
652, Grand Forks had 417 applicants. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  It would be in the bigger centers because it’s not only the 
tax property; but, it’s also the specials. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  When you try to calculate what the need might be for veterans, do you 
look at the number of veterans in the state? 
 
Linda Ledbetter:  We have seen those numbers growing. 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger continued with his testimony. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Can you explain section 3 of the bill? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  Explained section 3 of the bill. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  When I look at the salaries of some of your positions, do you 
have any compression issues? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  We do deal with compression issues; sometimes it’s worse than 
others. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Closed the hearing. 
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Chairman Vigesaa:  Opened the discussion on SB2006. 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger, Commissioner, ND Office of State Tax:  Discussed attachment 
A. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  What is in your operating? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  The $363,000.00 additional would represent the increased contract 
expenditure for GenTax.    
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  There was something about the FTE’s? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  There was $75,000.00 added back in for the operating expense 
associated with the FTE’s.   
 
Representative Howe:  The $363,165.00 is the total of the GenTax and Microsoft 365.  
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  With regard to the 10 FTE’s those were unfunded; but you still had the 
authorization for 10 FTE’s.  The governor’s recommendation was just to remove those? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  There were 6 FTE’s in this budget that were authorized but didn’t 
have any funding.  The 4 FTE’s had funding that’s the 123 FTE’s. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  The $772,000.00 is that the funding for the other 4 FTE’s? 
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Ryan Rauschenberger:  That is representative of 4 FTE’s unfunded; it’s more than the 4 
we’ve identified.  It’s for technically higher paid FTE’s than what we’ve identified as those 
four. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Discussed the green sheet. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  The homestead tax credit is to align more with what the usage is going 
forward? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  That’s correct.  The amount funded by the Senate would more 
closely represent what the current appropriation is plus the deficiency request.  It would 
basically fully fund this biennium. 
 
Representative Bellew:  Why are those going up like that?  I’m more concerned about the 
disabled veterans because some of those get a pretty good retirement check.  I think that’s 
something we need to look at again.  
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  We have more applicants than in previous years.   
 
Representative Bellew:  This is not just retired veterans, it’s all veterans?  If you have a 
service related disability, you can get a veteran’s tax credit.  Is that correct? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  That’s correct.  A disability is a primary qualifier on that program. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  There’s a certain percentage level you have to be for a 
disabled veteran. 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  You have to be 50% or more. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  What I’m hearing is that a lot of these veterans from Vietnam 
are now getting old enough that they’re not of working age.   
 
Representative Bellew:  Can a Vietnam veteran who is 65 get the disabled veteran credit 
and the homestead tax credit at the same time? 
 
Linda Ledbetter, Supervisor of Assessments, ND Office of State Tax:  Yes.  The 
individual who is eligible for a disabled veterans credit can then also be eligible for the 
homestead credit.  The homestead credit is based on income.  We do recommend that they 
apply for the disabled veterans credit calculation first because it’s a higher taxable value 
that’s available to the veteran.  We tell them to calculate it both ways.   
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  With the litigation contingency fund, the $1.2 million; where 
you notify OMB and legislative council that you need a transfer.  You need to have some 
language in your bill in order to receive the money from OMB for litigation funds.  Is this the 
language? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  We don’t have anything in this bill. 
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Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  How do you get the money out of OMB for litigation? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  I would have to ask how the litigation funding bill is structured.  I’m 
not quite sure of the answer to that. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Is there litigation money designated for the tax commissioner? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  In that budget bill there is $2.4 million total.  We are not specifically 
identified in the bill; even though that number is based on us and the industrial commission.  
We’d be $1.2 million of that and the remainder would be the industrial commission. 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger continued with the worksheet. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  Are you checking motor fuel? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  We don’t do it as much as we used to; but, we do.  We do that 
when they’re doing weight checks; we’re able to check along with them.   
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  When they call you out there you work together.  You’re not 
running your own program, you’re just part of the program. 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  That’s correct. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Your personnel is on site to do the test?  You don’t just contract with 
highway patrol for them to do it? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  They have their own personnel doing weight checks and they 
prefer us to be out there and doing the dyed fuels enforcement. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  Everybody tries to abide by the rules and there are big fines 
if you get caught. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  What is the fine? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  It’s $500.00 for the first fine and $1,000.00 for the second; it 
doubles each offense. 
 
Chris Kadrmas, Fiscal Analyst, ND Legislative Council:  Section 6 of SB2015 authorizes 
a transfer from the litigation funding pool to the agency.  That authorization is the 
appropriation transfer.   
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  The ag commissioner needs $250,000.00.  We’re going to 
have to have some language in OMB to do that. 
 
Chris Kadrmas:  It does say to eligible state agencies for litigation expenses.  It doesn’t have 
a definition of eligible agencies. 
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Chairman Vigesaa:  I couldn’t imagine why they would be if there were funds remaining.  
That number could be changed in the budget. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  There was litigation money; it was $4 million and now it’s 
$2.5 million.   
 
Chris Kadrmas:  At this point, there would be no agencies that would be ineligible.  If the ag 
commissioner requested $250,000.00; at that point OMB would be able to transfer that 
$250,000.00 and authority out of the $2.5 million. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  There was $4 million but the commitment is already the $1.2 
million for the tax commissioner and the industrial commission is $1.5 million and there is 
another $100,000.00 committed for a different agency. 
 
Chris Kadrmas:  The way it’s written it’s $2.5 million and it’s up to OMB how it’s divided.  As 
the bill sits, it’s not specifically carved out for any particular agency.  It’s at the discretion of 
the office of management and budget. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  I visited about this with the ag commissioner yesterday.  
What they have left isn’t going to cover all of the expenses.  There are still bills coming in 
from Waters of the USA and also commitments for the studies from the endangered and 
invasive species; it’s probably not in the governor’s recommendation because they never 
went to him and asked for it. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Are you in a lawsuit or is it something that may end up in litigation? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  We are not in any litigation right now.  This is just in case we do 
end up in that litigation. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  There’s a case going on right now that you’re investigating? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  Yes. 
 
Representative Bellew:  Do you collect individual income taxes and keep it in a fund and 
then give out the refunds?  The report that we get from OMB for income taxes collected; is 
that the amount collected minus the refunds or is that just the amount collected? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  When we collect individual income taxes it’s general fund, we have 
a separate account called refund reserve; because we do need an account set aside.  We 
do remove a certain amount depending on what month it is to be able to pay out of that fund 
individual income tax.  The OMB revenue reports, depending on which month it is, that’s net 
of what we have set aside to write out checks for refunds.  At the end of every fiscal year, it 
all evens out; because the refund checks have been written and it’s zeroed out. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  When refund checks are unclaimed, do they go into the unclaimed 
property?  Is there ever a time when those come back to you? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  They stay in the unclaimed property. 
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Chairman Vigesaa:  Is there any way to know how many dollars you have sitting out there 
unclaimed? 
 
Ryan Rauschenberger:  We can run a report. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Closed the discussion. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the office of the 
tax commissioner and for payment of state reimbursement under the homestead tax credit 
and disabled veterans’ credit; and to provide for a transfer. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Opened the discussion on SB2006. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Discussed the worksheet. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  That position must have been added part way through the biennium, 
so this just completes the funding for that one position? 
 
Becky Keller, Budget Analyst, ND Office of Management and Budget:  You did only fund 
that position partial for the 2017-2019 biennium; so for them to continue, we had to give them 
the rest to fully fund it. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Was that a position that was added part way through the biennium? 
 
Becky Keller:  Yes. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Is the underfunding also part of their budget submission? 
 
Becky Keller:  To meet the 10% reduction, they had six unfunded positions this biennium; 
the remaining four that we removed correlates to the $772,000.00 underfunded salaries that 
we did.  
 
Chairman Vigesaa continued with the worksheet. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  If it stays level, they’ll be all right with the funding there? 
 
Becky Keller:  Yes. 
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Chairman Vigesaa continued discussing the worksheet. 
 
Representative Bellew:  I still don’t understand the base payroll changes. 
 
Becky Keller:  Explained how base payroll adjustments come about.  
 
Representative Bellew:  Do you have that broken down as to what that $700,000.00 is? 
 
Becky Keller:  It’s because of those higher salaries that they gave and they were able to 
give some pay raises and we have to carry them forward; they have had to increase their 
temp’s salaries because they don’t have as many FTE’s now. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  It the cost to continue in some regards. 
 
Becky Keller:  Several of the agencies including legislative council did that. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Closed the discussion. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the office of the 
tax commissioner and for payment of state reimbursement under the homestead tax credit 
and disabled veterans’ credit; and to provide for a transfer. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Opened the discussion on SB2006. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Discussed the green sheet. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  It looks like it’s a 3% increase overall less the homestead tax credits.  
It’s 10 FTE’s but the money coming out is for how many, was it four FTE’s? 
 
Representative Beadle:  I think it’s 14 FTE’s.  There were 6 FTE’s authorized with no 
funding; and that reduction is $772,000.00.  It’s the remaining four FTE’s weren’t funded last 
biennium. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  But the authorization for 10 FTE’s is removed? 
 
Representative Beadle:  Yes. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Section 2 is the transfer between those lines and that’s something that’s 
been traditional? 
 
Chris Kadrmas, Fiscal Analyst, ND Legislative Council:  Yes. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Went through the sections on the green sheet. 
 
Representative Beadle continued with his explanation. 
 
Representative Bellew:  Did the tax commissioner tell us why the Homestead tax credit and 
the veteran credit are going up like that? 
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Representative Beadle:  It’s that there are more people aging into that threshold to be 
eligible.  They’re also recognizing that a number of people that qualify for one, qualify for the 
other. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  This is a similar amount to what the deficiency appropriation was. 
 
Representative Bellew:  Did you ask the commissioner about the base payroll changes and 
what that $711,000.00 is? 
 
Representative Beadle:  Some of their staff as they move up through tier system, just 
naturally moved up to different positions? 
 
Representative Bellew:  Did they give you a break out of that? 
 
Representative Beadle:  I can get a break out for that just so we have it. 
 
Representative Beadle continued with his explanation. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  It’s just the cost to continue. 
 
Becky Keller, Budget Analyst, ND Office of Management and Budget:  We have it broken 
out by permanent salaries; there’s $333,000.00 of that, temp salaries are $115,000.00 and 
the benefits that have to go along with those is $263,000.00 of that $711,000.00. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  What are they utilizing for temporary employees? 
 
Chris Kadrmas:  Their temporary employees are heavily used during tax season. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  There’s $1.9 million in fuel tax revenue and I’m just 
wondering if that’s being done right. 
 
Chris Kadrmas:  There’s a calculation that’s made for the administrative portion of collecting 
those taxes that is repaid to the general fund for collecting and administering those taxes and 
distributing to the DOT and all the various entities that receive that allocation. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  That $1.991 million is going into the general fund? 
 
Becky Keller:  Right.  That number is reduced from the current biennium. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  How come? 
 
Becky Keller:  It doesn’t take them as much. 
 
Representative Beadle continued with his explanation. 
 
Representative Bellew:  Made a motion to remove the temporary salaries of $115,000.00. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Does it outline how many temporaries? 
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Chris Kadrmas:  Most likely it’s just a dollar amount for salaries.  They don’t indicate how 
many individuals. 
 
Representative Bellew:  If that doesn’t go, $75,000.00 for funding in that auditor position 
could go. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  That was a person that was hired part way through the last biennium.  
This is to bring his salary up to the full biennium’s amount. 
 
Becky Keller:  The temporary salary dollar amount for the 2019-2021 recommendation is 
$649,320.00. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  They always have a certain amount built in for temporaries because 
they use them every year. 
 
Becky Keller:  Yes, they rely on them. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Closed the discussion. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the office of the 
tax commissioner and for payment of state reimbursement under the homestead tax credit 
and disabled veterans’ credit; and to provide for a transfer. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Opened the discussion on SB2006. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Went through the green sheet. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Did the commissioner offer any areas where he could reduce further? 
 
Representative Beadle:  He did not offer any information at all. 
 
Representative Beadle continued with his explanation. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  You have no suggestions for any amendments? 
 
Representative Beadle:  We could for discussions sake reduce some of the temporary 
employees.  We could underfund the salaries also. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Did you have the number for the tax time? 
 
Representative Beadle: It’s $260,000.00. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  The rest of the temp was? 
 
Representative Beadle:  It was $390,000.00. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  If we reduce their salaries and operating expenses by the portion that’s 
not related to tax time, that would be something we can do? 
 
Representative Beadle:  Yes. 
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Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  In section 3 where they get that $1.9 million, what are they 
spending to get that $1.9 million? 
 
Alex Cronquist, Fiscal Analyst, ND Legislative Council:  I don’t have that information.  
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  That $1.99 million goes to the department for the administration.  Is that 
correct? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  The funds would go to the general fund but it’s to reimburse the general 
fund for money that’s being spent from the general fund on administration by the tax 
department. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Section 3 in a couple of previous bienniums if we could see if that 
number has been growing? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  In 2015-2017 that amount was over $2 million; in 2013-2015 it was about 
$1.78 million. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  How is that calculated?  Is it a percentage of what’s collected?  If we 
were to reduce the temp salaries by that $300,000.00, would we just add that to the 
underfund salaries and wages line? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  That would be an option or we could just add another line saying to reduce 
funding for temporary salaries. 
 
Stephanie Gullickson, Budget Analyst, ND Office of Management and Budget:  It’s for 
administering the motor fuel tax and it goes right to the general fund.  Instead of appropriating 
that money to the tax department to pay for their expenses it goes to the general fund 
because they’re appropriated out of the general fund.  The tax department goes through a 
process and calculates how much their expenses are to administer this program and that’s 
the amount that’s put into that particular line. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Do you know if the commissioner has a turn back expected this 
biennium? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  It looks like the most recent estimate was about $1.1 million. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  We should reduce that temporary salary line by what’s utilized off the 
tax time. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  Made a motion to underfund salaries by $390,786.00. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Seconded the motion. 
 
Voice Vote made. 
 
Motion Carried. 
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Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  Made a motion to remove $500,000.00 from the motor fuel 
tax. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Does that have any effect?  Does it change anything with regard to the 
general fund? 
 
Alex Cronquist:  Unless we reduce the general fund appropriation as well, this would just 
be a reduction in revenue to the general fund and an increase in funds available for the 
highway fund.  It wouldn’t impact the tax commissioner’s budget; it would just reduce revenue 
for the general fund. 
 
Representative Howe:  Before I can support this motion, I need to see a breakdown of what 
they’re actually spending this $1.9 million on. 
 
Representative Beadle:  I just sent an email to the tax commissioner’s office asking for that 
specific breakdown. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  Withdrew his motion. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Withdrew his second. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Closed the discussion. 
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A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the office of the 
tax commissioner and for payment of state reimbursement under the homestead tax credit 
and disabled veterans’ credit; and to provide for a transfer. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment A 

 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Opened the discussion on SB2006. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  See amendment 19.0219.02002.  Attachment A. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  Made a motion to adopt amendment 19.0219.02002. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Seconded the motion. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  I told leadership two weeks ago that putting these things on 
budget bills doesn’t work.  I wouldn’t be surprised if the Senate doesn’t kill the whole bill and 
then we redo it again. 
 
Representative Bellew:  Maybe more people should be in on the conversation.   
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  There will be more conversation in the full committee. 
 
Representative Bellew:  My objection to this is the two-year delay. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  It needs to be a two-year delay because there’s no money to 
back fill the income tax.  They didn’t even pretend to like it in the Senate. 
 
Representative Howe:  I know we want to have the conversation again, but is it really worth 
having the conversation again? 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  It’s a valid argument. 
Representative Mock:  I am going to resist this motion.  The House made its position and 
the Senate defeated it overwhelmingly.  I don’t disagree there’s a role that earnings could 
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play in reducing tax liability.  I hope if we go forward with this, that part of the conversation is 
centered around what our intention is for earnings that do transfer over; how those should be 
used in general.  I would be more willing to support it if this were revised.  If it was not just 
focused on tax reduction; but of how we use those legacy fund earnings that do transfer to 
the general fund. 
 
Representative Beadle:  I think if we have this on there, that that will be a significant part of 
the conversation within conference committee. 
 
Representative Bellew:  If we put this on the budget, he won’t be on the conference 
committee will he? 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Chairman Delzer will select the conferees and he could be on that 
conference committee.  It isn’t unheard of putting a policy member on the committee. 
 
Chairman Delzer:  It happens when we have an issue that deals with policy. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  We really do need to get some longer term thinking on this 
legacy fund. 
 
Chairman Delzer:  I think you should put it on and go ahead and go to conference on it.  It’s 
one way that you could return some of that legacy fund money to the citizens of North Dakota.  
I came down to ask that when you do some work on SB2015 to consider that amendment I 
handed out about the budgeting side of the legacy fund.  I think it would solve a number of 
our budgeting problems with the legacy fund. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  I have not shared that with the committee yet. 
 
Chairman Delzer:  We handed that out in the full committee. 
 
Representative Bellew:  Would you explain the effect of that amendment? 
 
Chairman Delzer:  The effect of that amendment would mean that for budgeting purposes 
the money that comes in at the end of the biennium would not be recognized until the next 
biennium; so that it’s cash on hand.  There’s a law on the books that says you’re not supposed 
to spend next time’s SIIF money and this would put the same thing in for the legacy fund. 
 
Representative Mock:  To your knowledge, the legislature’s spending of earnings before 
they’re realized and transferred; does that have any effect on the state’s credit rating or 
standing with any financial institution? 
 
Chairman Delzer:  I don’t know if that question has been asked.  I have certainly heard about 
issues with the cash flow; because we’re spending money that’s not there.  If we were 
consistently in the red with our cash flow, that would cause some real consternation with 
everything.  I think they look more at the budget stabilization fund for bond ratings. 
 
Representative Mock:  Is that a question that we can have asked or see if there are potential 
implications?  I think that would be helpful in considering your amendment. 
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Chairman Delzer:  I’m sure we can have council look into that. 
 
Voice Vote made. 
 
Motion Carried. 
 
Representative Beadle:  For the other amendment we were looking at reducing the salary 
item by $390,786.00; that would be the equivalent of the temp employees they have that are 
not directly associated with tax season.  In section 3, the motor vehicle fuel revenue tax 
collections, it’s the transfer of money to the general fund for the expenses to it.  That transfer 
doesn’t do anything to take away from the cost they use for the program; it just takes away 
from the transfer to the general fund from the other fund.   
 
Representative Beadle:  Made a motion to reduce the salary line item by $390,786.00. 
 
Vice Chairman Brandenburg:  Seconded the motion. 
 
Representative Howe:  I’m going to resist this motion.  I don’t think it’s necessary to reduce 
the temp salary for these people. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  We had divided out the tax temporaries? 
 
Representative Beadle:  This is the temporary employees for the remainder of the time. 
 
Voice Vote made. 
 
Motion Carried. 
 
Representative Beadle:  Made a motion for a “Do Pass as Amended”. 
 
Representative Kempenich:  Seconded the motion. 
 
Roll Call Vote:  6 Yeas 1 Nay 0 Absent. 
 
Motion Carried. 
 
Chairman Vigesaa:  Closed the discussion. 
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Relating to the salary of the state tax commissioner; and to provide for a transfer. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
2:10 Chairman Delzer: Called the meeting to order for SB 2006.  
 
Representative Beadle: Tax commissioner’s budget came over fairly clean it was a 
reduction of 10 FTEs, statement of purpose of amendment you’ll see in the salaries and 
wages line a reduction of 333. We did give the employees their compensation pay raise but 
we also did a reduction of 359 thousand dollars for temp employees. We didn’t make any 
adjustment to the budget itself. The only other change is the addition of section 4, Legacy 
income tax reduction fund, to make sure that we have a good conversation with the senate.   
I will make a Motion to amend with 19.0219.02003 
 
Representative Howe: Second  
 
Chairman Delzer: Any further discussion on the motion to amend? The income tax deal is 
that doesn’t take effect until the taxable year 2022?  
 
Representative Beadle: Correct, this is very similar to HB 1530 which passed the House 
earlier this session. However, we did add a delayed effective date to it.  
 
Chairman Delzer: If you look at the budget status report for today it shows us going up 50 
million, that’s because of this, and that’s the issue of how we look at the Legacy earnings 
because they come in the last day of the biennium. Government opts adopted that section 
that was handed out earlier for 2015 that says for budgeting purposes we would recognize 
Legacy earnings the biennium after instead of the last day of the biennium. Further 
discussion? Voice vote, All in favor, Motion carries. Further amendments to come before 
us on 2006?  
 
Representative Beadle: The adjustments on the bill itself from last biennium to this 
biennium, there’s a reduction of 10FTEs. Last time the assembly had underfunded 6 of them, 
they were all vacant so we removed those as well as 4 additional ones. We also did a 300-
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thousand-dollar funding addition to fully restore the GENETEC software. Over the next 5 
biennia this will save us between 7 and 9 million dollars. With that we had the Office 365 
licensing and then there was 1.3 million, 1 million for the homestead tax credits and 300 
thousand for disabled veterans tax credits.  The department believes that this money will 
make it so they won’t have a deficiency next biennium.  
 
Chairman Delzer: This takes that into account, why did this only show 1 million dollar 
increase? The emergency appropriation was more than that? Or is that a million from the 
senate?  
 
Representative Beadle: The deficiency appropriation took us up to just under 16 million total 
for the two credit combined, this one puts us as 15.8 total, we won’t be too far off.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Questions by the committee? 
 
Representative Beadle: I will move a Do Pass as Amended  
 
Representative Howe: Second  
 
Representative Beadle: Once you remove the adjustment for the two tax credits, the budget 
itself is about a 5% increase over the course of the biennium however once you reduce the 
tax credits it’s only a 2.4% increase and this is a total general fund agency.   
 
Chairman Delzer: We are still funding the tax department to go out and check diesel? What 
kind of findings have they found?  
 
Representative Beadle: We do have all of the costs associated with what they do, we can 
assure you they are not acquiring any trucks. They were able to justify down to the dollar for 
their funding amount. It was generating more revenue than we are expending.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Is that a requirement from the feds or is that something we are just doing?  
 
Representative Kempenich: When that got brought up a few sessions ago I think it was a 
federal initiative.  
 
Chairman Delzer: It was an initiative but was it a requirement?  
 
Representative Schobinger: I just wanted to explain, back in 98 I introduced a bill to 
eliminate the income taxes in North Dakota, at that time the tax commissioner took a position 
on it and I didn’t appreciate that position because I think it’s his job to carry out the policy that 
we make here. This kind of does the same thing, it’s forcing him to take a position on their 
budget based on some kind of change of policy.  
 
Representative Schmidt: I think earlier this session I carried a deficiency bill to cover the 
loss to the homestead credit and the disabled veterans and with discussion with the chairman 
this bill should prevent any deficiencies?  
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Chairman Delzer: That was the discussion we have had. Any further discussion on the 
motion for a Do Pass as Amended? Seeing none we will call the roll.  
 
A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea:       13       Nay:      5       Absent:    3 
 
Motion Carries, Representative Beadle will carry the bill 
 
Chairman Delzer: With that we will close this meeting. 
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A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the office of 
the tax commissioner and for payment of state reimbursement under the homestead tax 

credit and disabled veterans' credit. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Testimony # 1 - 2 

 
Legislative Council: Adam Mathiak  
OMB:  Becky Keller  
 
Conferees:  
Senator Wanzek, Senator Bekkedahl and Senator Robinson 
Representative Beadle, Representative Headland, Representative Mock 
 
Adam Mathiak handed out: 
Base Level Funding Changes – Attached # 1. 
Statement of Purpose of Amendment – Attached # 2.  
 
Senator Wanzek called the conference committee to order on SB 2006.  Roll call was taken. 
He asked the House to explain their changes.   
 
Representative Beadle:  We didn’t do too many adjustments to this budget.  For the most 
part, we felt that you did pretty good work on it in the first half.  In large part, thanks to a 
fantastic recommendation coming from the agency at the start of session. The changes we 
did make were the $57,520 increase on the salary increase line.  That’s the salary pay 
package as was determined by both chambers.  We underfunded or reduced funding for 
temporary employees by the amount of $390,786.   We were looking for some areas to get 
us to conference because at that time, we didn’t have the pay package fully determined. This 
would account for 100% of their temporary employee budget right now for anyone not utilized 
during tax season.  There are $649,282 is the total temporary employee request. Of that, 
$258,496 is the processing. It’s really some of the hourly ones used during tax season. 
$390,786 is tax and research support.  That’s some of the expertise, the compliance people 
they have throughout the course of the year as well as some senior staff that might retire or 
transition but then will be back on a temporary basis.  That would be the reduction of salaries 
that we’ve done there.  
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Outside of that, we kept the increased funding for GenTax, we kept the increased funding for 
disabled veteran’s tax credits feeling that it would help us avoid any deficiency appropriation 
for the next biennium.   We kept the transfer of the money for the motor vehicle fuel tax – 
even though there was quite a bit of discussion on our side.   We additionally added Section 
4 which is the income tax rate reduction fund – and utilizing the interest coming off of the 
Legacy Fund earnings to go towards helping to lower income tax in the state.    
 
From the House perspective, we were looking at the various proposals that were out there 
from the Legacy Fund and realize that most of the good ideas we sent over there were being 
defeated.  We didn’t have a whole lot of vehicles left in the House side in which we felt there 
were good proposals that had come across from the Senate, so we wanted a make sure we 
had a more substantial discussion on this as well as looking at how we want to come out of 
this session planning for the Legacy Fund. That would be the summation of the House 
changes.  I can have Representative Headland go through a little more detail on the language 
in section 4 because it is a little different from what had been on 1530, as it had passed out 
and was over in the Senate for consideration.  
Senator Wanzek: asked Representative Headland to explain in detail.  
 
Representative Headland:  The change we made in how 1530 was passed over in that bill 
to what we have on this bill is that we just delayed the implementation until the end of the 19-
21 biennium.  Instead of starting at the end of this biennium, we delayed the action.   
 
I’m not sure if you want to go through exactly how everything flows, but with a transfer at the 
end of the biennium for $100M – whatever that number may be.   At a minimum, it would be 
$100M to cover both years of the biennium so you would have $50M available for rate 
reduction the first year and to sustain that into the second year of the biennium, you use the 
other $50M.   For the committee to really understand the flowage of it, it might be nice to 
have Joe Becker explain how the dollars flow.   
 
Senator Bekkedahl:    I have a question for Adam.  When I look at the fiscal updates that 
we get from Legislative Council, there is $50M appropriation attached to this request.  I’ve 
never understood the 50% of Legacy Fund earnings.  It’s estimated that the fiscal impact is 
$50M/year which doesn’t equate to half of the Legacy Fund earnings.  Can you explain that 
better so I understand why one language says “transfers 50% of Legacy Fund earnings 
exceeding $100M.”  to this fund.  I’m just thinking that number is bigger than $50M.  Then as 
just explained by Representative Headland, the $50M number is $50M per year and it’s only 
active for the second year of the biennium.  Please explain that difference to me.  
 
Adam Mathiak:  The way the amendment went into the bill, it’s a $50M minimum, but it’s 
50% of the Legacy Fund earnings.  Right now it’s based on the March 2019 revised revenue 
forecast, there’s an estimate of $100M so that would be $50M which happens to align with 
the minimum.  If the actual earnings were $200M, then it would be 50% of that $200M and 
$100M would be transferred.  The basic concept of the bill is that if there’s $50M transferred 
into that fund, that $50M would get divided by three.  Two thirds of that would be used to pay 
the rate reductions during the next biennium.  That way there would be one third of the money 
left to help with the next biennium and account for any fluctuations that may occur in the 
Legacy Fund earnings and provide some cushion for the general fund.  
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That $50M, divided by three, two thirds of that would be used to calculate the rate reduction, 
so one third in the first year of the subsequent biennium and one third of that amount in the 
second year of the biennium with the last third carried over to the biennium even after that.   
Those rates would be calculated by the tax department. They’d be applied proportionally 
equally to individual and corporate income taxes. Then they would publish those new rates 
and so after that transfer would occur on June 30, 2021, then it would be for the subsequent 
tax year when that first rate reduction would take place.  

Then the Legacy Fund earnings that were transferred into this Legacy income tax rate 
reduction fund which is really just a holding tank.  So the money would be transferred to the 
general fund to make the general fund whole for those rate reductions so it’s an equal amount 
of dollars transferred to try to offset the fiscal impact.   
   
Senator Bekkedahl:    Thank you,  but it is confusing.  If I could ask the House side a 
question – I live in the county and my city is the county seat of that county and I think by most 
statistics, we have the highest level of median income in the state within my district.  I’m 
asking this from the policy side, but I have honestly in all my years of city government, 30 
years there and now 5th year here, I have absolutely never heard anybody in my community 
ever complain about income tax rates in North Dakota.  Am I missing something that other 
districts are aware of because from the policy side, I’d like to hear that discussion.   
 
Representative Beadle:  My quick question on that is, have you ever had anyone ask for an 
income tax credit on any legislation because when you start talking about the income tax, 
and say no one has ever complained about it.  Well, if we’ve ever had people that have asked 
for credits to help incentivize behavior one way or another, that would be someone saying 
that lower income tax helps them make more decisions.    
 
Senator Bekkedahl:  I’ve never had anybody ask for those either. In fact, when I have had 
those discussions, the concern has been that our income tax rates are so low now that tax 
credits don’t really work in our environment either.   
 
Senator Robinson: In my 30 years out here, never once have I had anyone ask about the 
income tax issue.  We are very low.  North Dakotans in 2008 voted 2-1 to leave it alone.  If 
we go down this road, we’re going to see a spike in property tax.  I hear all the time from folks 
concerned about property tax.  For our farmers, when you have a crop, paying income tax is 
one thing.  When you don’t, paying property tax is quite another thing.   
In the House today, we heard some of your colleagues spoke of the three legged stool.  To 
the extent we keep that three legged stool in place, we’re going to be far better off in the long 
run. I think back to last session and where we would’ve been if we were working without the 
income tax.  I look at the issue of stability.  If you make a lot of money, the income tax is 
there, and you pay.  It’s arguably the most progressive tax we have.  Families with several 
children are certainly going to pay a lot of sales tax, but we have a lot of farmers and others 
that have a lot of property.  There is an increasing concern, and certainly in the farming 
economy we’re in now, we have a forum in our district every weekend.  I can’t say at every 
forum, but 90% of them, the concern over property tax comes up and they’re saying “No 
more property tax!” But I don’t hear anyone concerned about our income tax.  I think that’s 
understandable, we’re very, very low.  
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Representative Headland: As a longtime member of the House Tax committee, I see 
session after session for requests for tax credits.  I had the tax department take a look and 
in the last three bienniums, the House has voted on over a hundred special interest tax 
credits.  We’ve defeated most of those so the Senate hasn’t had to look at them in the same 
way we’ve looked at them.  Regarding the 3 legged stool, we don’t have a 3 legged stool that 
stands today.  Sales tax collections are more than double the collections that we get with 
both individual and corporate income taxes.  In the past, for three bienniums in a row, we 
reduced income taxes.  Prior to those reductions, we were at a level of receipts with income 
both individual and corporate that is similar today after we cut individual rates in half.   
The point is that income tax is the most punitive tax when it comes to a growing economy.   
The record is clear that by reducing taxes, not immediately do you see the revenues restored 
to a growing economy, but you will eventually.      

If you go back to 2008 and we cracked the code on fracking, and all of a sudden, we had an 
abundance of revenue flowing.  If you look to see what happened in that time period in 2008, 
North Dakota and South Dakota had similar budgets; different revenue from different 
sources, and similar spending.  Since that time, with our doubling of revenues, our spending 
has doubled as well.  The idea is that you can provide tax relief that is exclusive to the state.   

We’ve tried to provide property tax in the past, but we’ve seen that with all the dynamics that 
occur with property tax, it doesn’t end up in the hands of the taxpayer.   We have since moved 
away from that because of the costs.  We don’t control property taxes.  The idea behind 
moving toward elimination or suspension of income tax.  This would be a way to reduce the 
tax burden for the tax payer and at the same time, replacing revenue that would be lost with 
Legacy Fund earnings and tying up those earnings so they wouldn’t be used to help aid what 
happened with a new source of revenue into the general fund in the past.  
You can accomplish all of that by doing it and at the same time getting rid of a punitive tax to 
economic growth.  The other thing is our need for workforce in our state.  Census numbers 
prove that people are moving from high tax states to low or no tax states.   If it would 
encourage any movement to North Dakota, it’s a win-win.  There’s more we could get into 
but I think you’re getting the picture why the House believes this is the right way to go.   
We understand the need for Legacy projects with those earnings.  That’s why we went with 
using only half of the earnings.  I don’t think we’re tied to any certain percentage.   
 
Senator Robinson:   I appreciate that, but we’re obviously on different pages here.  After 
the 2008 vote to leave income tax alone, the legislature for four separate sessions reduced 
both corporate and individual.  We know that on the corporate side, 85% goes out of state.  
One of those years, when the Governor signed the bill, $1M went to Bentonville, Arkansas 
and Ramsey County borrowed $1M for roads.  I don’t know how you justify that.    

I’ve talked to corporate people who believe in the need to pay their way.  We need good 
roads and bridges, schools, police departments, fire departments.  There’s a price tag for 
that.  In DOT, we’re leaving this session upside down.  We’re number ten in the number of 
bridges out there that are less than safe.    We have to ask ourselves the question, what kind 
of state do we want.  We can move to Mississippi and get by rather cheaply, but sometimes 
the greater cost is not doing these things, not investing in our state, in our system, in our 
schools.  We’ve done a lot of things to focus on Workforce development and encouraging 
firms and corporate America to come to North Dakota.  I think we have to switch our focus to 
employees.   What’s the image of our state out there?  Are we an exciting state to come into 
or do we have a lot of road blocks or a fence around ND?  These all cost money.  The greater 
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cost is not investing in our people.  I think that three legged stool that we had, we’ve been 
whittling away at that.  If it’s not a three legged stool anymore, it’s because of this legislature. 
I could be wrong, but we’re competing with other states.  There’s also the case that some 
states have higher taxes, but I don’t know if they’re driving people away.  The perception is 
that they have a quality of life.  On the senate side, there is little, if any, support for this right 
now.   We have a different philosophy on where we want to be and how we’re going to get 
there.   
 
Representative Headland:  I certainly understand that point of view.  It’s not that the Senate 
is completely against reducing taxes.  The Commerce bill came over with a tax credit for the 
unmanned aircraft service in that budget so they believe reducing the tax burden for them 
would be helpful to them.  The House believes that reducing the tax burden for everybody 
would probably have the same type of effect.  They’re not in line begging for us to eliminate 
their income tax, but I think if they had a chance to see it is, if the average tax burden in this 
state was $893, put that in their pocket and ask them if they are pleased with that.  If it helps 
encourage a growing economy at a quicker pace than you do with punitive taxation, why 
would we not take a greater look at that?   
 
Senator Wanzek: We’ve gotten an email on the veteran’s disability in the Homestead tax 
credit.  We’ll have to bring that up next time.  This is going to be an interesting conference 
committee. 
 
Senator Bekkedahl:  I want to compliment the House for bringing that information of the 
policy committee.  We obviously don’t get that.  I’ll be looking at that and asking some 
questions.  I would also appreciate to some degree, the rationale for taking all of the 
temporary employees away from an agency and only giving them during tax season.  If 
you’ve done that in other budgets, I’m not aware of that, but would like to hear of that as well.  
 
Senator Wanzek: Adjourned the hearing.   
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Senator Wanzek: Called the conference committee to order on SB 2006.  
Just so we make a little progress today, let’s have Sandy come up and propose the actual 
numbers for the current biennium and what we need to adjust them by and also for the new 
budget on the next biennium on the disabled veterans and the homestead tax credits.  
 
Information emailed by the tax department to committee members: 
Deficiency Request SB 2006 – Homestead & Disabled Veteran’s Tax Credit – Attached #1. 
Proposed Amendments to Engrossed SB 2006 – Attached # 2.  
Office of State Tax Commissioner - Attached # 3.    
 
Sandy McMerty, Deputy Commissioner, Tax Department 
Referred to Attachment #1. 
Based on the final reports that were due in March, we ended up with a deficiency, even with 
SB 2024 which addressed the deficiency that we had already anticipated. Based on final 
applications, we’re looking at a deficiency of about $586,644 between the two programs. 

Overall, in the Homestead Tax credit program, valuations went up and the applications went 
down. We were up about $360,000 in that program. Disabled veterans went up about 15% 
in applications so we had an additional 446 applications this year. That is an additional 
639,000 in that. With the two amounts, that was a deficiency in Homestead, of about $40,613 
over what we had received in SB 2024. In Disabled Veteran’s, there was a deficiency of 
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$546,031 for that total of $586,644. Based on the fact that you have given us some authority 
to do some transferring between those funds in the bill for the coming year, the two suggested 
amounts we are giving are about a 10% increase over where we would be in the appropriation 
right now.  
Currently, Homestead Tax credit’s appropriation in our bill is $15.8M. The new estimate there 
is $17.3M. On the Disabled Veteran’s credit side, right now the current appropriation is 
$8,410,200. We are estimating $10.9M for that program based on the response this year.  
Knowing that if the Disabled Veterans credit would continue at that 15% rate, since there is 
ability to transfer funds, we are assuming that 10% increase for both will cover that deficiency. 
 
Senator Wanzek: So, $586,644 is the deficiency even with the deficiency bill for this 
biennium. You are looking at $17.3M for Homestead Tax credit next biennium and $10.9M 
for Disabled Vets tax credit and the ability to shift those numbers around, you feel provides 
you the wiggle room?   
 
Sandy McMerty: We think that would provide us that flexibility. Like we said, there is about 
a 15% increase in Disabled Veterans. If that would continue, there would be about a 10% 
increase in Homestead from that valuation. Based on growth, we are hoping the 10% average 
will meet both of those.   
 
Senator Wanzek: As I understand it, these are programs we offer. There is not much 
negotiating on those numbers.  
 
Sandy McMerty: We have to make payments to replace those dollars. We did a good job 
and the counties did a good job of promoting.  
 
Representative Beadle: At the last meeting, as we were discussing the amendment with 
regards to the income tax rate reduction fund language, we asked the Tax Commissioner’s 
Office if they would be able to provide us with a breakdown that shows how that works so we 
have a better understanding. I think they had Joe ready to walk us through that for this 
meeting.  
 
Joe Becker, Auditor of Individual Income Tax, Tax Department  
Income Tax Rate Reduction Using Legacy Fund Earnings – Attached # 4.  
 
He explained the attachment.  All numbers are hypothetical.   
 
This is a diagram we used to describe HB 1530. We have revised it to reflect what is in SB 
2006. I will give you the short version. The concept is that at the end of the 2001 biennium, 
out of the Legacy Fund earnings, 50% would be placed in a Legacy income tax rate reduction 
fund. Continued by explaining page 1 of attachment # 4.  
 
Senator Wanzek: The remaining $50M in the Income Tax Rate Reduction Fund would carry 
over then?  
 
Joe Becker: Yes. If I can hold that question, there is a page that is going to show you what 
will happen there. The $50M will be there, but if the legislature in 2023 doesn’t do anything, 
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then that will fund the 2026 tax year rate reduction. The money that will be left is intended to 
sustain the reduction for 3 years.   
 
Joe Becker:  Explained Page 2 of Attachment #4.  
The cycle will just repeat itself.  
 
(11:31) Senator Bekkedahl: If I’m seeing the sequencing right, when you get to the 2025-
2027 biennium, the base funding amount to continue this tax relief for the prior two biennia 
would become $200M. 
 
Joe Becker: That is correct. The base funding amount will always be the two payments that 
are made in the prior biennium to fund the relief in the prior biennium  
 
Senator Bekkedahl: It seems like that gets larger than the amount in the Legacy Fund 
interest earnings we can use.  
 
Joe Becker: Yes. You have the forecast of collections that are a factor. How is that going to 
vary? Is it going to go up or down? That will obviously effect the outcome. What are legacy 
fund earnings going to look like down the road.  
 
Explained Pages 3 and 4 of Attachment #4.  
This is a transaction timeline. I thought that would be useful so you can see where the 
legislative sessions show up in this process. You can see where the legislature would have 
an opportunity to stop this process or make whatever adjustments they would need. All of 
these numbers correspond to the charts we just went through.  
 
Last page – is taking what I’ve said orally and putting it in writing.  
I will stand for questions.  
 
Senator Wanzek: We’re reading so much about the Legacy Fund and how it should be used.  
This is certainly an option. I am not sure whether we’re to that point yet. I understand this 
would supplant the taxes. It won’t eliminate those taxes. We will be using the Legacy earnings 
to make up for the reduction we give. If for some strange reason there was no earnings, there 
would be no tax reduction.  
 
Joe Becker: Correct. It goes back to the earlier question. The Legacy Fund earnings need 
to be there to sustain this process. 
 
Senator Wanzek: In my mind, I see the Legacy Fund providing stability in our commodity 
based market. Have we allowed that to grow enough to feel comfortable that it can succeed 
in doing that before we start extending that tax credits? I see some merit to this.  
 
Representative Beadle: The House also sees some merit to this too. 
 
Representative Headland: I have some thoughts. I myself, as long as we continue with oil 
production, cannot foresee any time there would be no earnings. The fund will continue to 
grow. Not to have any earnings, you would have to have some kind of catastrophic event 
that would impact earnings. How would that impact the fund? I don’t see that scenario. I do 
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believe, that way this has been designed, it is sustainable. It’s a slow and measured approach 
to tax relief. If something like that did occur, the legislature would have to be there and allow 
the reduction that occurred to continue and they would have to adjust the spending 
accordingly. The money then wouldn’t be there to supplant what has been reduced. It’s 
entirely workable.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl: I would like to point out that the Senate hog housed the HCR 3055 and 
put a study which will involve the chairs of both tax committees if it is passed through the 
House as it left the Senate. There will be discussion in the measure that is passed. It does 
reference tax relief initiatives. There are some areas that look more at the property tax relief 
than income tax relief. I would guess, by the language, that both would be in play for the 
discussions of that study. I’d like to see that study weigh out. It’s going to take more than just 
input from legislators. It will be a lot of public hearings to see what the public wants of legacy 
fund earnings. I commend the House for bringing this forward but I think it might be a little 
early in the process. If that is going to play out, I think we should let it play out for another 
biennium with the study. It will involve the Appropriations chairs and the Tax committee chairs 
from both chambers as well. What is being established as future uses of Legacy Fund interest 
or some plan to do that.  
 
Senator Wanzek: This is the issue that will keep us here for another meeting or two or settle. 
I wanted to ask about the temporary employees. You guys took the $398,000. We talked 
about that last time. Maybe Adam can explain what the temporary employees are again.  
 
Adam Mathiak: It is a reduction to the salary and wages line item. It is identified for that 
purpose. Once the agency has that funding, their full salaries and line item, they’ll be able to 
budget according to their agency needs. If they need to move a little bit of funding around 
within the salaries and wages line item, the legislative assembly does not specifically 
appropriate by object code within the line item so they have flexibility within their line item to 
move things around as needed to make their budget work. It was related to temporary 
salaries and it was removing that funding for the temporary salaries and excluding the ones 
here for the tax season. They would have some flexibility. It is just identifying the purpose for 
the reduction to the salaries and wages line item. It does not restrict them from using other 
salaries and wages line items with money to hire temporary employees.  
 
Senator Robinson: I understand the role and the need of temps. It is difficult to find them 
when we have low unemployment and people are looking for jobs with benefits. That has to 
be an uphill struggle and then you add to the needs of the agency in terms of the abilities 
these people bring to the table. I always thought that the fewer temporary employees we 
have, the better off we are for all the above. We invest in training and the recruitment. To me, 
that investment pays off if we can sustain that employment with that individual.   
 
Senator Bekkedahl: Do you know the number that is left in the salary and wage line items 
for temporary salaries?   
 
Adam Mathiak: $258,000  
 
Representative Beadle: The idea for reducing the temporary employee salary was as we 
were trying to find a number that would make sense in terms of reducing the salary line item. 
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The numbers we received from the tax department says the number of employees for 
processing, which tends to be the ones that are utilized during tax season, was estimated for 
this budget request of $258,496 over the course of the biennium. The tax and research 
support, which is the other temporary employees, was $390,786 for a total temporary 
employee salary of $649,282 for the biennium.  

Since this has passed the House, the ones that are not with the tax season often include the 
employees who are retired or from fulltime status but are still retained for their expertise. 
When we request tax information, that individual would be listed as a temporary employee. 
We might need to adjust that to make sure there is plenty of flexibility within the Tax 
Department so it’s not just a reduction of temporary employees.  

The temp employees are broken into two groups. There is the processing and research 
support with the overall numbers. The agency has their air resolution temp employees and 
their processing temp employees. The wages for these fluctuate from $12.50 - $14+ an hour. 
Some agencies have $12 - $17 per hour. The Tax Department is on the lower end for what 
they have for their temp employees. Some other departments go up to $23 an hour for more 
specialized temp employees. They are probably not abusing their tax employees. We have 
no problem on the House side to make sure they have flexibility so they can use temp 
employees during non-tax peak time.  
 
Senator Wanzek: Adjourned the conference committee on SB 2006.   
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Chairman Wanzek: Called the Committee to order on SB 2006. Roll call was taken. All 
committee members were present.  
 
Chairman Wanzek: It appears to me that the differences again were funding for temporary 
employees.  Section 4 which creates the legacy income tax rate reduction fund and the 
income tax reductions to start June 1, of 2021.  
 
Representative Beadle: Well we also need to make sure that we pay attention to the 
Homestead tax credit and the Disabled veteran tax credit as well. Those both have some 
adjustments in order to avoid deficiency corporation.  
 
Chairman Wanzek: The numbers I have are $586,644 additional deficiency and then new 
Homestead tax credit would be 17.3 and Disabled vet would be 10.9. So how hard and fast 
is the House on section 4? I think if we resolve section 4, it would be a great note to end the 
day on.  
 
Representative Beadle: Let’s do some of the changes and chunks individually and if you’d 
be willing I would make a motion to accept the adjustment of the homestead and veterans 
tax credits as well as the deficiency appropriation amount and add that to the final bill.  
 
Chairman Wanzek: I’m thinking now maybe a question for Adam would be can we voice 
vote on that? and we’ll include that in the final amendment which will take a roll call. The 
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motion to be would address, do we address the deficiency appropriation in this budget then? 
That was confirmed. And that would be at the numbers I referenced? 
 
Representative Beadle: It’s the 586 644 for the deficiency and then the estimates are 17.3 
and 10.9 for the Homestead and Veteran’s respectively. I move that motion.  2nd by Senator 
Bekkedahl:   
 
A voice vote was taken.  The motion carried.  
 
Chairman Wanzek: We’ll add that to the final amendment. Does anybody object if I ask Joe 
or somebody from the tax department to come up and explain or can you guys explain the 
$390,786 in temporary employees that you guys have cut?  
 
Representative Beadle: That conversation was in large part in our subcommittee discussion 
on the government ops committee, trying to find out ways in which we can 1) create some 
efficiencies, and 2) make some changes to what the Senate had sent us in order to get the 
budget over conference. At the time we had not adopted section 4. We were looking for some 
things to tweak in order to get on there. So in meeting with the tax commissioner’s office, 
that’s where we found the amount of the temp employees that are out there, of their total 
budget and their request of $649,282. Of those used for tax time and processing, $258,496 
goes towards that and then the amount of their tax and research support, the people that 
they have during the rest of the year, as well as some of the retired or individuals who are no 
longer full time but are still transitioning and staying on to help the department. That amount 
was $397,086. So while we knew we couldn’t get rid of anything during the tax season, 
because that’s a critical time and need for the agency, our committee took the stance of 
lowering their temp employees’ salary that amount. We do understand that there would be 
some hardships created if we specifically left that as a reduction for temp employees 
specifically, but we would certainly be willing to adjust that so it was just under funding 
salaries, but make sure the department has flexibility in terms of how they can absorb that.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl: Did the House take into consideration the cuts the agency took last 
biennium? In some of these employee areas and not just the FTEs but also the temporary 
salaries that they had out there and then in that consideration, driving efficiencies when we’re 
increasing the population of the state, I think there is a limit to how far we can drive those 
efficiencies and I’m glad I’m not the agency head who has to deal with that. So by my 
estimation, I think we’ve over sought the amount of this reduction and I would look for a better 
number than what’s on the table.  
 
Representative Beadle: To answer Senator Bekkedahl’s comments, we did take a look at 
the efficiencies and the cuts that this agency has made, and are greatly appreciative of the 
reductions that they’ve done in terms of the underfunding of the FTEs and salaries and how 
they’ve been able to work with and live within their means that way and we think they’re 
certainly some very prudent guidance and administration within this department. So 
absolutely we respect that and take that into consideration. And as mentioned we would 
certainly be willing of the $51M agency to make sure that they have the flexibility so that any 
further reduction wouldn’t be directly limiting their ability to use temp employees.  
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Chairman Wanzek: So are you saying you would be willing to support putting the $390 back 
or some number in between?  
 
Representative Beadle: Certainly I’d be willing to entertain that and I don’t know where my 
conferees on this side would end up being on there but at the very least I would be willing to 
look at taking that out of the temp line so it’s not specific to there, where it would just be an 
underfunded of salaries itself so the department would have flexibility to deal with it.  
 
Chairman Wanzek: so the $772,252, you’d rather adjust that number and eliminate, I guess 
I’m not quite following what you’re saying. Underfund salary and wages of $772,000 both the 
Senate and the House.   
 
Representative Beadle: It would be rather than having specific language, it would just be 
making sure it’s not definitively being taken from temp salaries and limiting their ability to 
utilize temp employees.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl: Just so I understand it, the Senate didn’t change that, so the House 
underfunded the salaries and wages line item by $772,252 and reduced the funding for 
temporary employees by $390,785, so we’re talking about over $1.1M reduction in salaries 
and wages between the FTEs and the temporaries? And what percentage of that is their total 
wages and salaries? Has that been calculated.       
 
Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council: Both the Senate and the House versions underfunded 
by $772,000.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl: Right.  That’s what I was bringing to light, between the two but it’s over 
a million dollars - $1.1M so on top of what the Senate and House already had in the budgets 
of $772,000 we’re taking another $390,000. That was the question that I had in mind was, 
do we really want to take them down to $1.1M when I’m guessing the $772,000 and I don’t 
remember this in testimony, but when we discussed that we must have had some agreement 
from the agency that they could incur that change in their budget or I don’t think we would 
have moved it out that way. Doesn’t that relate to the executive budget? To some 
recommendation they made as well? 
 
Representative Beadle: For the 90% budget I believe.      
 
(0.11.01) Chairman Wanzek: So we want to reinstate some of that $390,000 but 
Representative Beadle, you’ve made the comment that you don’t want that to reference 
temporary salaries, you want it to just?  
 
Representative Beadle: After the House made their action in consultation with the 
department, they have some concerns and in talking with council since we don’t specifically 
code the underfunded, I don’t believe it would directly restrict their ability to utilize temp 
employees outside of tax season. But in talking with the department, they have concerns that 
it would. And so we just need to make sure that it’s clarified that any further reduction would 
not impact or hold them solid to not being able to utilize any dollar whatsoever to go towards 
temp employees during the nontax time period. Since we had reduced it for the entirety of 
the amount for nontax time period temp employees then we want to just make sure that that’s 
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clarified that they still do have the ability to use temp employees for the remainder of the 
year.   
 
Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council: I can try to provide some clarification. If you look at 
the long sheet, (Attachment # 1, Base Level Funding Changes) that compares the House 
and Senate versions, its correct; both chambers reduced the salaries and wages line item or 
underfunded it by the $772,000. In addition to that the House reduced that same line item 
the salaries and wages line item by $390,000 dollars for related to temporary employees. So 
if the conference committee were to adjust that wording related to temporary salaries, 
essentially yes, the $772,000 and the $390,000 would be added together as just a total 
general underfunding of the salaries and wages line. If you agreed, yes.   
 
Chairman Wanzek: That takes me back again to the number, I had asked before if the House 
is willing to put the $390,000 back or basically remove it, any reference to it and stick with 
the $722,000 or do you want to change that $722,000 to something between the total of the 
two.   
 
Representative Beadle: It’s currently $772,000. At this point I think the House would be 
more willing to find a number somewhere in between them and merge them together as 
opposed to just removing these $390,000 all together. Just for reference to the combined 
amount between those two dollar figures would be an underfunded of $1.163.  
 
The conferees discussed among themselves regarding this issue.  
 
Chairman Wanzek: I guess in visiting here, the Senate’s position at the moment is that we 
reinstate the $390,000 and we stick with the executive’s position or $772,000 reduction which 
underfunds salary and wages.    
 
Representative Beadle: That’s unfortunate.  
 
V. Chairman Wanzek: Shall we end it now then?  (there was further discussion)  
 
(0.17.10) Representative Beadle: We would be willing to entertain amending the 
underfunded salaries and wages line to being a reduction of $967,645, and then removing 
the reduction of $390,000 for the temp employees, that amount would be half way between 
on the $390,000.   
 
Chairman Wanzek: Does everybody understand that?   
 
Senator Robinson: So we reduce the $390,000 by about 50% roughly?    
 
Representative Beadle: Yeah, I took the $397,086 and divided it in half and added that to 
the underfunded salaries. Or subtracted it so it increased the amount of the negative.  
 
Senator Robinson: I just echo Senator Bekkedahl’s earlier comment, although the governor 
had recommended the $772,000 that’s based on this budget. They are coming off a reduced 
budget so it compounds itself. I was hoping we could live with the $772,000 and not go any 
further. So often I think we hire people to do a job and we need to give them the tools to get 
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the job done and we have a lot of turnover in agencies and even the salary increase that we 
are putting out is going to serve like more of a catch up than moving forward but that’s just 
my opinion. 
 
Representative Beadle: Just for conversation’s sake as well, so looking at the – granted it’s 
the January 2019 vacant employees within the department - so they have the 10 employees 
that were removed in the executive budget throughout this, and a number of employees that 
they were planning to fill but were currently vacant. Many of them were 10 plus months’ worth 
of vacancy. In total the vacant salary positions equaled out to about $2.7M. They certainly 
did remove a number of these ones from the executive budget but those were already zeroed 
out in the executive budget recommendation so there are certainly some vacant employees 
out there that they would be able to absorb this within the first year of the biennium.    
 
(0.20.18) Senator Bekkedahl: I would be prepared to make a motion if the House would 
listen to it. I would move that the House recede from their amendments and we further 
amend that we add the deficiency for veterans and Homestead credit in the amount of 
$586,644; we further adjust the Homestead tax credit to $17.3 million for the biennium, 
we adjust the Veteran’s tax credit to $10.9M for the biennium; we adjust the 
underfunded salary and wages to $900,000 for the biennium, and we remove the 
funding that was reduced for temporary employment to a total of $390,786.      
 
2nd by Senator Robinson.    
 
Chairman Wanzek: Motion by Senator Bekkedahl, second by Senator Robinson and the 
motion again, I’ll let Adam repeat it.  
 
Adam Mathiak, Legislative Council:  It would be taking off the House changes, and then 
adding back the 2 and 2 1/2% compensation package and then not including that $390,000 
reduction for the temporary employees so that would be back at the Senate’s level of just the 
$772,000 for the underfunding of the salaries and wages. Adding the, I guess we’ll just round 
it off and do $590,000 for the deficiency for the two programs rather than the specific dollar 
amount but $590,000 for those two programs and then the additional amounts needed for 
this next budget cycle to bring it to the 17.3 and the 10.9 for those two programs and then I 
guess that would also remove the income tax reduction and fund items as well.   
 
Representative Beadle: All of these changes sound good especially if it includes the section 
4 with the income tax reduction language in there. That might be something we could vote in 
support of but without that language on there, I think we’ll have a few no votes over on this 
side.  
 
Chairman Wanzek: Is there any other further discussion on this motion. Hearing none, I’ll 
ask Alice to take the roll call.  
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Roll Call vote was taken.  Yea: 3; Nay:0; Absent: 0. 
  
    Yes Vote:       No vote:  
Senator Wanzek           Representative Beadle  
Senator Bekkedahl                   Representative Headland 
Senator Robinson           Representative Mock        
 
The motion fails.  
 
Senator Wanzek: We will adjourn. I’ll reschedule the meeting as soon as we can. Our 
leadership has asked us to stay on top of it and pushed the meetings as far as we can so 
maybe it will be sometime tomorrow.          
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Conferees:  
Senator Wanzek, Senator Bekkedahl and Senator Robinson 
Representative Beadle, Representative Headland, Representative Mock 
 
Senator Wanzek: called the conference committee to order on SB 2006. 
In the last meeting, we attempted a motion and I guess, I think the ball is in the House’s court.  
Does the House have any alternative motions?  
 
Representative Beadle:  Handed out amendment # 19.0219.02006. The House firmly 
believes we need to do something with the Legacy Fund as a whole to make sure that we 
protect ourselves from potential ballet measures that could come in and do something similar 
to Alaska and cause some budget hamstrings. We trust our citizens but we just want to make 
sure they don’t get mislead by any outside sources and we felt that this was a good way to 
do that. In the conversations with leadership we recognize that the assembly might not be 
ready for a change at this time and so I’m passing around the current amendment that would 
be removing that section from the version of the bill. This amendment would ultimately be 
what we see as full compromise language. This follows through with the conversation we 
had in the last meeting. It removes the change that the House had made where we 
specifically underfunded the temp employees, where we had taken out the temp employee 
change for the $390,786. It removed that, it maintained the salary and payroll increases, but 
then it extends the underfunded of salaries and wages from $772,000 up to $900,000, to help 
continue a little bit of reduction within the workforce. That way, it takes out roughly $128,000 
of the temp employees revenue without it being directly tied to the temp employees. The 
$900,000 number was the number that was mentioned in our discussions las time as one of 
the proposals that had been offered by Senator Bekkedahl. So this language would include 
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that to do the underfunded at $900,000. Take out the temp employees, take out section 4, 
but otherwise would be consistent with the majority of the Senate’s amendments. If we want 
to look at that, I’ve run this by leadership, I think they are happy with it on our side. If we’re 
interested in that, I’d be willing to make the motion but if we want to have discussion before 
that we certainly can.    
 
Senator Bekkedahl: In our last discussion we also talked about adjusting the Homestead 
tax credit $17.3M and the Veteran’s tax credit to 10.9. I see the deficiency in there is for 
$590,000. I don’t see the change in here for that. Could you address that?   
 
Representative Beadle:  We recognize there is the need to do the deficiency appropriation 
this biennium to complete the ’17-19 based on the current. We understand there is the 
discussion to be had to increase where we were at with those tax credits in order to avoid 
the need to come back with a deficiency appropriation the next biennium. Based on the 
actions of both the House and the Senate of the 1.3 increase, that certainly gets us a little 
way there but the feelings of leadership on the House side was that they would do the 
deficiency appropriation to fill it back up, however don’t do the additional increase beyond 
that 1.3 that has already gone through both chambers and we can deal with that as a 
deficiency bill next session should the need arise.  That way we can see what the actual 
requests for those tax credits would end up being first.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl: I think we have reasonable testimony from the dept. that it is going to 
be needed. They’ve done the work and the effort in this to tell us they’re going to need it so 
it puzzles me why we would not accept the recommendation from the agency that they’re just 
going to be back for a deficient year when we can just fix this now. I’m of the mind that we 
should fix this now but if the committee wants to move forward with this, I’m not going to fight 
that battle.   
 
Senator Wanzek: My thought is that they provided a rational reasonable number, it makes 
sense that we should include it but I think that we all understand, regardless of what the 
number is, we always have to meet the deficiency.  It’s not like we can say in law, provide a 
program and then say we’re not going to fund it, we have to fund It one way or another, 
whether its appropriated right now or we’re going to do it in a deficiency payment.  It seems 
to make more sense to me to do it right now but maybe we’re quibbling over minor stuff. 
 
Senator Bekkedahl: I continue to contend that the way the finances are looking and I don’t 
have the larger picture, that’s negotiated above my pay grade but we absolutely have the 
money to listen to the agency to do this right now. And again it puzzles me why we have 
professionals in the department that bring us this information and then we chose to ignore it 
just so something can look better right now and then if there’s a deficiency we’ll have to deal 
with it again. Just doesn’t seem the way we should be budgeting. Budgeting to me is you 
take the information and you make the most rational decision and you put that into the budget 
format. And I think we’re ignoring some pretty good advice here.  
 
Senator Robinson: I would echo the comments that Senator Bekkedahl made. We’re 
sensitive about the legacy fund and by kicking the can down the road, all this does is fuel 
that discussion out there. They’re sitting on a ton of money, they’re underfunding programs, 
we’re putting things off, defer, postpone, delay and I just think it’s not good policy. But maybe 
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it is what it is, and we all want to go home but it would be better going home doing the best 
possible job we can and here’s the situation. I think the department made their case, they’re 
going to come back and give us the same information that they gave us this time about the 
numbers, the growth, based on patterns, based on history. So we know that information.    
 
Representative Beadle:  I certainly sympathize with those comments as well and we 
certainly brought it up with leadership on our side – this is the way they want us to proceed. 
Looking at the numbers, we do know that there has been growth and the numbers that were 
sent out for the disabled vets tax credit program and obviously property valuations we don’t 
control that and all that stuff fluctuates. And I know Ward county has had 34% average 
increase this year and I know that’s being protested by many. But for Disabled Veterans tax 
credits, 2015 they have 3111; 2016 it is 3329. And obviously that group due to multiple factors 
continues to have additional members that would qualify for that. 2017 the number increased 
about 250 from 3329 to 3571. And then it went up almost 500 in 2018. So we recognize that 
there was an increase there but we don’t know how much of that was a onetime increase or 
how much of that is a percentage change that’s likely to be consistently tracked. Similarly, 
with the Homestead tax credit, we did see a significant increase, it was about 8600; 8659 in 
2015; 8621 in 2016. Had a pretty sizable jump in 2017 up to 9700 but then in 2018 again it 
backed off to 9399. So I think that by not expanding the deficiency beyond the 1.3 that we’re 
already increasing that line item for right now, by not continuing to plan as if it’s going to 
continue to grow at 10% year over year, that allows us to have the actual numbers before we 
come back and do the deficiencies next time.   
 
Senator Bekkedahl: With the consent of the committee, I’d like to ask the tax commissioner 
one thing. My question is, $15.8M in Homestead tax credit and $8.4M in its budget going to 
$17.3 as recommended and 10.9 is about a $4M difference in total appropriation. How do 
you absorb that within your department because you obviously have to send these funds out 
before the deficiency is paid to you, don’t you? Or do you delay the payments to the counties 
because of the deficiency?       
 
Ryan Rauschenberger, State Tax Commissioner:  I might defer that to Glenda. So right 
now we’re delaying the checks to the counties right now until we get the deficiency and then 
those checks will go out. So like right now, basically they were due at the end of March. We 
certify the counties June 1, but the information we received was at the end of March. So 
whenever we get to a legislative session, it’s always this critical, we don’t have the information 
until almost the end of session and that’s why we don’t have that number at the beginning so 
we always end up with that deficiency right towards the end. So we don’t have the data til 
now, but we’ll delay sending out checks until later in the year.  
 
Senator Bekkedahl: But operationally then, in the first year of the next biennium, you will 
cover all of the payments that come in, the deficiency comes in the 2nd year of the biennium 
payments?  (That was confirmed.) And you have to hold the checks then? (Confirmed).   
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Representative Beadle moved House recede from House amendment and amend with 
19.0219.02006.  
Representative Mock seconded the motion.   
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken:  5 yeas, 1 nays,   0 absent.  
Motion carried.    
   
 Senator Wanzek – Y  Representative Beadle – Y 
 Senator Bekkedahl – Y  Representative Headland – N 
 Senator Robinson – Y  Representative Mock – Y 
 
 
Senator Wanzek: Hearing adjourned.  
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